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THIS SHARE OFFER DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. IF YOU HAVE
RECEIVED THIS DOCUMENT AND YOU ARE NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT THEN PLEASE DESTROY OR RETURN THIS
DOCUMENT TO THE COMPANY IMMEDIATELY. If you are in any doubt about the contents of this Share Offer Document
or what action you should take you should consult a person authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000,
as amended (‘FSMA’), who specialises in advising on the acquisition of shares and other securities if you are resident in the
United Kingdom, or, if you are not resident in the United Kingdom, from another appropriately authorised independent
adviser.
This Share Offer Document, which is a financial promotion for the purposes of Section 21 of the FSMA, is issued by the
West Berkshire Brewery Company Limited (the ‘Company’), which accepts responsibility for the information contained
herein. This document has been approved as a financial promotion for United Kingdom publication by Grant Thornton UK
LLP (‘Grant Thornton’) with a registered address at Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London,
NW1 2EP which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton is acting as sole Financial
Adviser to the Company and no one else, in connection with the proposed Offer, and will not regard any other person as
its customer or be responsible to any other person for providing the protections afforded to customers of Grant Thornton
or for advising any such person in relation to the Offer.
All information contained in this Share Offer Document has been provided by the Company and has not been
independently verified by Grant Thornton. No representation or warranty, express or implied, is given by any person as to
the accuracy or completeness of the information and opinions contained herein and no responsibility or liability is accepted
for the accuracy or sufficiency of any of the information or opinions, for any errors, omissions or mis-statements, negligent
or otherwise, or for any other communication, written or otherwise in connection with the proposed investment. Potential
Applicants should read the whole of this Share Offer Document. In particular, your attention is drawn to the contents of
pages 24 to 27 in Part 3, headed ‘Risk Factors’.
Accordingly, neither Grant Thornton nor the Company shall be liable for any direct, indirect or consequential loss or
damage suffered by any person as a result of relying on any statement in this Share Offer Document or in any future
communication in connection with such proposed investment. All recipients are strongly recommended to take
independent professional advice where appropriate.

The West Berkshire Brewery Company Limited
(Incorporated in the UK with registered number 03667842)
www.wbbrew.com

Offer for sale of up to 16,000 Offer Shares at a price of £125 per Ordinary Share,
comprising 11,516 Founders’ Shares and 4,484 New Shares
The Ordinary Shares are unlisted securities. No application is being made for admission of the Ordinary Shares to be admitted
to the Official List of the United Kingdom Listing Authority or to the AIM Market of the London Stock Exchange. Further,
neither the United Kingdom Listing Authority nor the London Stock Exchange has examined or approved the contents of this
Share Offer Document. The Ordinary Shares will not be dealt on any other investment exchange (whether recognised or
otherwise) and no application has been or is being made for the Ordinary Shares to be admitted to trading on any such
exchange or market.
The Ordinary Shares have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (as amended)
or under the securities legislation of any state of the United States of America, Canada, Japan or South Africa and they may
not be offered or sold except pursuant to an available exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration
requirements of the US Securities Act and applicable US state securities laws. This Share Offer Document should not be
distributed, published, reproduced or otherwise made available in whole or in part (directly or indirectly) in or into the United
States of America, Canada, Australia, Japan or South Africa or any other country outside the United Kingdom where such
distribution may lead to a breach of any law or regulatory requirements, save pursuant to an exemption from the registration
or prospectus or other regulatory requirements of any such jurisdiction. Accordingly, subject to certain exceptions, the
Ordinary Shares may not be offered or sold directly or indirectly in or into the United States of America, Canada, Australia,
Japan or South Africa or to or for the account or benefit of any national, resident or citizen of the United States of America,
Canada, Australia, Japan or South Africa.
Certain risks to the Company of which the Directors are currently aware are described in Part 3 of this Share Offer Document
entitled ‘Risk Factors’. If one or more of these risks or uncertainties arises, or if underlying assumptions prove incorrect, the
Company’s actual results may vary materially from those expected, estimated or projected. Given these uncertainties,
Potential New Shareholders should not place over-reliance on forward-looking statements and are advised to read, in
particular, Part 2 of this Share Offer Document for a more complete discussion of the factors that could affect the Company’s
future performance and the industry in which the Company operates. The Company undertakes no obligation to update
forward-looking statements or risk factors other than as required by applicable law, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise.
Grant Thornton, which is authorised and regulated in the UK by the FCA, is acting as the Company’s Financial Adviser in
connection with the Offer. No liability whatsoever is accepted by Grant Thornton for the accuracy of any information or
opinions contained in this Share Offer Document or for the omission of any material information from this Share Offer
Document for which the Company and the Directors are solely responsible. Grant Thornton will not be offering advice and
will not otherwise be responsible for providing customer protection to any person other than the Company in relation to the
contents of this Share Offer Document.
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SUMMARY
The following information is extracted from, and should be read in conjunction with, the full text of
this document. Potential New Shareholders should read the whole document and not rely solely on
the information in this ‘Summary’ section or any other information summarised in this document.
The Company
The West Berkshire Brewery Company Limited is a privately-owned, independent brewery founded
in 1995 by Dave and Helen Maggs and situated in Yattendon, Berkshire. In its high specification
production facility, it currently produces a range of eight different beers and cask-conditioned ales,
plus a monthly speciality beer, all of which are available throughout southern England either or both
on draught and in bottles. Currently, the Company’s customers include free houses, Enterprise Inns,
Waitrose and Fortnum & Mason.
The Company’s beers and ales, some of which celebrate local characters, have won over 30 awards.
Management
Since March 2013, the Company has been led by its Chairman, David Bruce, who in a 47-year
international brewing career has co-founded Bruce’s Brewery and the Firkin Pubs as well as several
other pub and brewing businesses including The Capital Pub Company PLC. This business was sold
in July 2011 to Greene King for an enterprise value of £93 million, providing the original Enterprise
Investment Scheme investors a threefold return on their net of tax investment.
An experienced executive team and staff operate the Company on a day-to-day basis and Share
Options are held by all members of staff with at least two years’ service. The Board comprises an
experienced team with demonstrable credentials and experience of brewing, marketing, sales and
real estate.
Recent financial performance
The Company has made a profit before tax of £69,408 in the six month period ending 30 September
2013 on revenues of £761,688 and over the same six month period the Company’s net assets
increased by 11.6 per cent. to £532,797.
Future strategy
The Company’s immediate objectives are to further improve sales through carefully targeted
marketing and public relations initiatives and by developing the Company’s sales force through the
appointment of additional personnel. In this way, the Directors aim to generate sufficient additional
business to absorb the current spare capacity of its brewery as soon as possible.
Once the current brewery is operating at or near full capacity and subject to the availability of
finance, the Company will look to acquire a freehold site suitable for a new brewery which would
feature a bigger production plant and could include its own kegging and bottling facilities together
with a visitor centre and retail shop.
As part of its future expansion the Company may consider the possible development of a ‘tied’ estate
of managed pubs in city centres and will also review the possibility of expanding into specifically
targeted export markets such as North America, India and China.
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The Offer
The Company is now offering the opportunity to Potential New Shareholders to acquire up to 16,000
Ordinary Shares in the Company at a price of £125 per share. 11,516 Ordinary Shares are being
offered to raise up to £1,439,500 for the Founding Shareholders who will be retaining a holding of
at least 10 per cent. of the Company. The proceeds of any Excess Subscription up to a value of
£560,500 will be used to provide additional working capital for the Company.
Further details of the Offer and the subscription procedure are set out in Parts 5 and 6 of this Share
Offer Document. An Application Form is included with this document.
THE ATTENTION OF POTENTIAL NEW SHAREHOLDERS IS DRAWN TO THE RISK FACTORS
REFERRED TO IN PART 3 OF THIS SHARE OFFER DOCUMENT.

3
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DEFINITIONS
The following definitions apply throughout this Share Offer Document, unless the context applies
otherwise:
“ABV”

alcohol by volume;

“Act” or “Companies Act”

the Companies Act 2006 (as amended);

“AIM”

AIM, the market of that name operated by the London
Stock Exchange;

“Applicant”

a Potential New Shareholder who submits an Application
Form;

“Application Form”

the application form to be used by Potential New
Shareholders to accept the Offer;

“Applications”

the applications made pursuant to the Application Form;

“Articles”

the articles of association of the Company as at the date
of this Share Offer Document;

“barrel” or “brewer’s barrel”

a quantity of 36 imperial gallons, or 288 pints;

“Board”

the board of directors of the Company;

“CAMRA”

the Campaign for Real Ale;

“Company”

The West Berkshire Brewery Company Limited, a
company registered in the UK with registered number
03667842;

“Directors”

David Bruce, David Maggs (who is known as Dave
Maggs), Helen Maggs, Andrew Baum and Karen Baum;

“EMI”

the Enterprise Management Incentive Scheme. EMI
options must comply with Schedule 5 to ITEPA;

“Employee Shareholder”

a Shareholder who is an employee of the Company and
who has acquired Ordinary Shares pursuant to an
employee share option scheme;

“Excess Subscription”

subscription for shares under the Offer, in excess of the
Founders’ Offer Subscription of £1,439,500, to a
maximum additional amount of £560,500;

“FCA”

the Financial Conduct Authority of the United Kingdom;

“Firkin”

a unit of beer equal to a quarter of a barrel, or 72 pints.
Casks in this size are the most common container for
cask-conditioned beer;

“Founders’ Offer Subscription”

subscription for shares under the Offer, up to a maximum
of £1,439,500, such funds being used to acquire
Ordinary Shares from the Founding Shareholders;
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“Founders’ Shares”

the 11,516 Ordinary Shares being offered for sale by the
Founding Shareholders pursuant to the Offer;

“Founding Shareholders”

David Maggs, Helen Maggs, Andrew Baum and Karen
Baum;

“Full Subscription”

the Founders’ Offer Subscription and the Excess
Subscription together, amounting to £2,000,000;

“FSMA”

the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, of the
United Kingdom (as amended);

“Grant Thornton”

the Corporate Finance division of Grant Thornton UK LLP
which is authorised by the FCA to carry on investment
business, acting as financial adviser to the Company;

“HMRC”

Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs;

“ITEPA”

the Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) Act 2003;

“London Stock Exchange”

London Stock Exchange plc;

“New Shares”

the up to 4,484 Ordinary Shares to be issued pursuant to
the Excess Subscription;

“Offer”

the offer for sale to raise up to £1,439,500 for the
Founding Shareholders through the sale of some of their
Ordinary Shares of ten pence each in the Company at the
Offer Price and to raise up to £560,500 through the issue
of New Shares at the Offer Price pursuant to the Excess
Subscription;

“Offer Price”

£125 per Ordinary Share;

“Offer Shares”

Ordinary Shares acquired from the Founding
Shareholders at the Offer Price and the New Shares;

“Ordinary Shares”

ordinary shares of ten pence each in the capital of the
Company;

“Potential New Shareholder”

potential participants in the Offer;

“QCA Guidelines”

the corporate governance guidelines for AIM companies
published by the Quoted Company Alliance in force as
at the date of this Share Offer Document;

“Shareholders”

the holders of Ordinary Shares;

“Share Offer Document”

this Share Offer Document including all attachments and
enclosed papers;

“Share Options”

options to acquire Shares under the Share Option
Schemes;

“Share Option Schemes”

the share option schemes adopted by the Company on
28 March 2013;

“Share Trading Facility”

a facility, provided by Asset Match Limited, which will
enable Shareholders and Potential New Shareholders to
trade Ordinary Shares after 31 January 2015;
7
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“SIBA”

the Society of Independent Brewers;

“SIBA DDS”

SIBA Direct Delivery Schemes to pubs owned by
participating pub companies;

“Sterling” or “Pounds Sterling” or “£”

the legal currency of the UK;

“Takeover Code”

the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers as published by
the Takeover Panel;

“Takeover Panel”

the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers;

“UK Corporate Governance Code”

the Principles of Good Governance and Code of Best
Practice published in September 2012 by the Financial
Reporting Council;

“United Kingdom” or “UK”

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern
Ireland; and

“The West Berkshire Brewery” or “WBB” the West Berkshire Brewery prior to its incorporation as
a limited company in 1998.

8
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EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS
Publication of this Share Offer Document

9am on 30 December 2013

Latest time and date for receipt of Application Forms
Definitive share certificates despatched

5pm on 31 January 2014
within two weeks of the closing of the Offer

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Share Offer Document includes statements that are, or may be deemed to be, ‘forward-looking
statements’. These statements relate to, among other things, analyses and other information that are
based on forecasts of future results and estimates of amounts not yet determinable. These statements
also relate to the Company’s future prospects, developments and business strategies.
These forward-looking statements are identified by their use of forward-looking terminology such as
‘anticipate’, ‘believe’, ‘could’, ‘estimate’, ‘expect’, ‘intend’, ‘may’, ‘plan’, ‘predict’, ‘project’, ‘will’ or
the negative of those variations, or comparable expressions, including reference to assumptions, or
by discussions of strategy, plans, aims, objectives, goals, future events or intentions. These forwardlooking statements include all matters that are not historical facts. These statements are contained in
a number of places throughout this Share Offer Document and include statements concerning
projections of the Company’s future results, operating profits and earnings, financial condition,
liquidity, prospects, growth strategies and the industry in which the Company operates. They are
based on current expectations and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by those statements.
By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to
events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance. The Company’s actual results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the business sector in which the Company
operates, may differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements contained in
this Share Offer Document. In addition, even if the Company’s results of operations, financial
condition and liquidity, and the development of the business sector in which the Company operates,
are consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in this Share Offer Document, those
results or developments may not be indicative of results or developments in subsequent periods.

9
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PART 1
LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

The West Berkshire Brewery Company Limited
(Incorporated in the UK with registered number 03667842)

Directors:
David Bruce
David Maggs
Helen Maggs
Andrew Baum
Karen Baum

The Flour Barn
Frilsham Home Farm
Yattendon
Thatcham
Berkshire
RG18 0XT
30 December 2013

Dear Potential New Shareholder
When Dave and Helen Maggs started The West Berkshire Brewery in 1995, investing nearly all of
their savings in the business, they set out to establish a local Berkshire brewery making the highest
quality beers and ales, sourcing many of their ingredients from the local area.
Working with good friends, Andrew and Karen Baum, Dave and Helen incorporated the Company in
1998, since when the business has continued to evolve, with turnover increasing every year since
2001 and an approximate average annual growth rate of 20 per cent.
As the Founding Shareholders, they have developed the business carefully and sensibly over the past
eighteen years and, unusually, have never incurred any significant debt. The business enjoys an
excellent reputation for its award-winning, cask-conditioned ales which are available not only in
many free houses but also as a ‘guest beer’ for Enterprise Inns and, most prestigiously, its bottled beers
are available in Fortnum & Mason and Waitrose. Its beers have won numerous awards, including a
Gold Medal in the Strong Bitter category at the Great British Beer Festival in 2009.
Dave and Helen have established a talented and motivated executive team. Each member of this team
holds, or has the right to acquire, Share Options in the Company (subject to a minimum of two years
of service) and between them they are responsible for all aspects of production, sales, marketing and
finance.
In 2012, the Company moved to its current location at the above address, where a high specification
production facility is able to produce up to 210 barrels of beer per week, putting the business in a
strong position for its continuing growth.
The Founding Shareholders, all of whom are approaching retirement age, have recently instigated a
strategic review of the business. As a result of this exercise they have, while looking to sell part of
their holding, resoundingly rejected one of the many options available to them, namely, to sell up
completely and retire.
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Given the opportunities for further expansion, they have decided instead to retain at least 10 per cent.
of the Company while offering some of their Ordinary Shares to not only their family and friends but
also the beer drinkers, licensed retailers and residents of Berkshire and its neighbouring counties.
By adopting this strategy, they will not only be able to capitalise on their hard work to date but also
still own a significant share of the business while continuing to assist their executive team in its further
development.
As part of their plans for the future development of the business, I was delighted to be invited earlier
this year by the Founding Shareholders to join their board as Chairman. I have been brewing and
selling beer for my entire 47-year international brewing career, including co-founding Bruce’s
Brewery and the Firkin Pubs, The Capital Pub Company PLC and the two City Pub Companies.
However, I believe this to be one of the most exciting opportunities I have come across.
I liked the beer and the team so much that I even bought a share of the Company! Last July, I
purchased £100,000 worth of the Founding Shareholders’ shares, such is my confidence in our vision
for the next stage of their brewing adventure. I will be acquiring additional Ordinary Shares worth
£50,000 at the Offer Price and I do hope you will follow my example and seize this opportunity to
acquire shares in such a well-established business.
This presents a rare opportunity for members of the public, particularly beer aficionados, to not only
own a share of their local, award-winning independent brewery but also to potentially benefit
financially from its future development.
We have some exciting plans for further developing the business and I am delighted to now be
leading the Company. The first stage is to attract new investors to join me as Shareholders for the
future and to give the Founding Shareholders the rewards I believe they so richly deserve for all their
vision and hard work so far.
With best wishes.
Yours sincerely

David Bruce
Chairman

11
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PART 2
INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY
Introduction – the opportunity
The West Berkshire Brewery, situated in Yattendon, Berkshire, is a privately-owned, independent
brewery founded in 1995 by Dave and Helen Maggs.
In March 2013, David Bruce accepted an invitation from the Founding Shareholders, who have
devoted over 18 years to building the business and who are approaching the age of retirement, to join
their Board as Chairman in order to help them formulate a long-term strategy both for the Company
and for themselves as Shareholders. In a 47-year international brewing career, David Bruce has cofounded Bruce’s Brewery and the Firkin Pubs as well as several other pub and brewing businesses
including The Capital Pub Company PLC which was sold in July 2011 to Greene King for an
enterprise value of £93 million.
Since joining the Board, David has been working closely with his co-directors and the Company’s
executive team in order to assess the future requirements necessary to help the business develop
further from its current solid base. With its proven track record for producing multi-award-winning
beers, David intends to develop the corporate culture and infrastructure of the business to become
even more sales and marketing orientated in the future.
Having reviewed their options, the Founding Shareholders have decided to sell part of their
shareholding to new Shareholders but will still retain a significant stake in the Company. They will
continue to play an active but reducing role in the business and will be focussed on further
developing the new generation of management for the future. In so doing, they intend to expand the
Company’s shareholder base to include local residents, licensed retailers and beer enthusiasts and to
help prepare the Company for the next stage of its growth.
As part of this strategy, the Founding Shareholders are now making up to 11,516 of their Ordinary
Shares in the Company available to the public to purchase in blocks of 8 Ordinary Shares at a price
of £125 per Ordinary Share. The shares being offered represent 60.6 per cent. of the Company and
value the Company at £2,375,000. The proceeds of any Excess Subscription up to a value of
£560,500 will be used by the Company to provide additional working capital for the Company.
Further details of the Offer are set out in Parts 5 and 6 of this Share Offer Document.
Information on the business
Background
Dave and Helen Maggs started the West Berkshire Brewery in the summer of 1995 with a five-barrel
plant in a converted building behind the Pot Kiln pub in Frilsham, Berkshire, less than two miles from
its current Yattendon site. Within its first few weeks the brewery was awarded its first accolade,
‘Overall Winner’ in the ‘Beer of the Festival’ category at the CAMRA White Horse Branch Beer Festival
in 1995.
In 1998, the Company was incorporated and Dave and Helen sold a 25 per cent. share in the
Company to their good friends, Andrew and Karen Baum, to raise funds to expand the business. The
funds raised enabled them to build a larger brewery near its current site in Yattendon, which increased
the brewery’s capacity to twenty-five barrels a week. This second brewery was completed in 2000,
and the Company operated out of the two sites until 2006 when the Yattendon site was extended and
capacity further increased to a maximum of 80 barrels a week with the introduction of additional
fermenting vessels. As a result of this additional capacity at Yattendon, the original Frilsham site
ceased operations in 2007.
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As the Company continued to expand and its capacity requirements were increased to accommodate
growing consumer demand, planning permission was applied for to construct a larger brewery.
Building work was completed in October 2011 and by February 2012 the Company had relocated to
The Flour Barn, just outside Yattendon, a high specification production facility which is the current
home of the Company.
At present the Company produces an average of 85 barrels per week, but management intends to use
retained earnings and the proceeds of any future fundraisings to fund their expansion plans for the
business so that the Company can increase its production levels over time and operate closer to its
production capacity of 210 barrels per week.
With the exception of bottling, which is out-sourced, the Company’s staff use brewing equipment
which is wholly owned by the Company.
In 2005, a small shop was established adjacent to the brewery enabling local consumers to purchase
its products directly from the brewery, creating an additional route to market for its growing customer
base. In 2012, the Company moved its retail operations to a larger shop at the Flour Barn where
customers can be served in greater numbers and on-line orders can be processed.
Also in 2005, the Company acquired the lease of The Rising Sun at Stockcross near Newbury. In
2007, The Rising Sun won the CAMRA West Berkshire Branch pub of the year award.
In March 2013 David Bruce joined the Board as Chairman and in July 2013 he acquired 6.7 per cent.
of the Ordinary Shares of the Company for £100,000. In April 2013 Jonathan Short, another
experienced investor, bought approximately 16.7 per cent. of the Ordinary Shares of the Company
for £250,000 and in October 2013 four members of staff bought shares representing 1.3 per cent. of
the Company’s equity. All of the aforementioned share purchases were from the Founding
Shareholders at the same price of £78.95 per share.
The Company currently has 13 members of staff and five Directors and in the year ended 31 March
2013 generated revenues of £1,210,987. The Company has made a strong start to the current
financial year generating revenues of £761,688 and profit before tax of £69,408 in the six month
period ending 30 September 2013. Over the same six month period the Company’s net assets
increased by 11.6 per cent. to £532,797.
Product range
The Company currently produces a range of eight different beers and cask-conditioned ales, plus
seasonal and monthly speciality beers, all of which are available throughout southern England.
Currently, the Company’s customers include high-quality free houses, Enterprise Inns, Waitrose and
Fortnum & Mason.
The Company’s beers and ales, some of which celebrate local characters, have won over 30 awards.
The range currently consists of the following, which are available either or both on draught or
in bottles.
Good Old Boy was the Company’s second ever brew and the first
offered for sale to trade. It has never been out of production since and
remains the Company’s best-selling beer. Good Old Boy was named
after everyone’s favourite character in the local pub. The Company
describes Good Old Boy as combining rich malts and fruity hops to
produce an exceptionally well-balanced and full-flavoured beer of
real character. Good Old Boy, which has an ABV of 4.0%, has won
many awards including Champion Best Bitter in the CAMRA
Champion Beer of Britain, London and South East Regional Beer of
the Year competition.
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Dr Hexter’s Healer is amber in colour and is a highly-hopped,
full-bodied, strong bitter. Brewed originally for Paul Hexter,
landlord of the Royal Oak in Wantage and one of the Company’s
earliest customers, Dr Hexter’s Healer is one of the strongest beers in
the Company’s range at 5% ABV. This beer has won 11 regional and
national awards since 1997 including, in 2009, Champion Strong
Beer of Britain and Gold Medal in the Premium Beer category plus
Bronze Overall in the CAMRA Great British Beer Festival and a Gold
Medal in the CAMRA London and South East Regional competition in
the same year.
Mr Swift’s Pale Ale is a light, straw-coloured bitter with an ABV of
3.8% which the Company describes as “fragrantly hoppy and
extremely drinkable”. It says “the hops in the brew are a classic mix
of Fuggles and Goldings over a pale malt base creating a uniquely
refreshing session ale.” The face of this beer is Stanley, a school friend
of Dave Maggs, who is always happy to help out when needed.

Maggs’ Magnificent Mild, which is described by the Company as
“dark and full of roast malt flavours coupled with a smooth mouth feel
and gentle sweetness”, was conceived by Dave Maggs and landlord
Jack Macaulay over lunchtime pints at the Bell Inn, Aldworth,
Berkshire. A traditional, southern-style dark mild, it has won 11
regional and national awards since its introduction more than 15
years ago. Maggs’ Magnificent Mild has an ABV of 3.8%.

Mr Chubb’s Lunchtime Bitter was named after Dave Maggs’ father,
Fred, who was lock-keeper at Whitchurch-on-Thames for many years.
Known by some as Mr Chubb, he would often enjoy a lunchtime pint
at the pub across the weir. Mr Chubb’s Lunchtime Bitter is an awardwinning amber beer with an ABV of 3.7%.

Old Father Thames is described by the Company as a “low gravity
bitter, amber in colour and light in body, well-rounded and
balanced”. The Company describes Old Father Thames as a great
quaffing beer and it has an ABV of 3.6%.
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The Company’s two newest additions to its permanent range are:
Isis Pilsner is based upon a traditional Bavarian lager and was first
brewed in 2013. A hay-coloured beer brewed using English lager
malts and Continental hops (the only beer from the Company to do
so), it is designed to give what the Company describes as “a crisp
flavour and woody bitterness”. Isis Pilsner has an ABV of 4.9%.

Tamesis Extra Stout is the first stout in the Company’s range and is
brewed to create a full-bodied beer with an ABV of 4.9%. The
Company describes Tamesis Extra Stout as “traditionally brewed with
dark malts and oats to give a thick, smooth body and chocolate
flavour with Fuggles and Goldings hops for flavour and bitterness.”

In addition, the Company produces occasional speciality brews such
as Coronation Gold which was created in 2012 to celebrate the 60th
anniversary of the coronation of Her Majesty the Queen. The
Company also continues its long tradition of producing its popular
monthly beers including a Christmas special brew, which for 2013
was called Yule Fuel.

In addition to brewing, the Company now offers regular brewery tours, has launched the ‘Good Old
Boys’ Club’ membership Scheme and stocks a range of clothing and beer paraphernalia, all sold
through its shop and online.
Brewery tours take place monthly and enable participants to see and understand in detail how the
Company’s beer is brewed, starting with the raw ingredients and ending with a glass of the finished
product.
The Company’s production methods
The Company only uses traditional brewing techniques and prides itself on using British raw
materials. The Company is proud to support English hop growers as it believes English hops and
barley give the best balance and flavour to traditional beers.
The Company uses as many hops as possible from the only remaining hop garden in Old Berkshire
and the remainder of the hops are all English grown, with the exception of Isis lager which uses
continental hops. The Company aims to source its ingredients as locally as possible whilst
maintaining quality. However, some ingredients, such as Maris Otter malting barley, may not be
available locally as they can only be grown in certain areas of the UK.
In a traditional brewing process, such as that operated by the Company, the barley is first malted, a
process which converts the barley grains into small parcels of starch. The malted barley is crushed in
the brewery allowing the starch to become exposed and ready for mashing. This is done by soaking
15
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the crushed grains at a temperature of around 63 degrees centigrade, the ideal temperature for
converting the starch into the most fermentable sugars. The liquid extracted during this process is
called wort and contains extracted sugar which is then boiled with the hops to give bitterness and
aroma.
There are many different types of hop which can be divided into two categories, Copper or Bittering
hops and Aroma hops, each of which gives different qualities to the brew. The Copper or Bittering
hops are added at the start of the boiling process and the Aroma hops towards the end of the boil.
The first addition gives bitterness and the second provides aroma and flavour.
Once the wort has been boiled, it is pumped through a heat exchanger to cool it down to 20 degrees
centigrade, and then into a fermenting vessel where the yeast is added. The yeast converts most of the
sugar into alcohol, a process which takes between three to seven days. The fermentation is stopped
by chilling the beer at a strategic point to give the correct ABV with enough yeast and sugar left in
the beer for a secondary fermentation to subsequently occur within the cask. The fermented beer is
then racked into pre-cleaned casks, fined (made clear) and kept in the cold store at 10 degrees
centigrade for a week. During this time the small amount of remaining yeast works on the residual
sugar producing CO2, which carbonates the beer (known as conditioning), hence the term ‘caskconditioned’ beer.
The management respects the Company’s rural location and seeks to operate in a sustainable manner.
Apart from sourcing its ingredients from as near to the brewery as possible, spent grains are taken by
a local farmer to feed his cattle and pigs. The Company has installed a reed bed drainage system to
filter the brewing effluent and return it to the ground as clean water. The area around the reed bed
has been seeded with chalk downland grasses and wild flowers not only to attract insects and wildlife
but also to support threatened species.
Customers
The Company’s core, highly-valued customers are local free houses, with whom it works closely to
support their trade and England’s pub heritage. The Directors believe that this approach enhances the
Company’s reputation and brand recognition and contributes to the local Berkshire economy and the
preservation of the institution that is the Great British Pub. The Company’s longest-standing customers
include the Royal Oak at Wantage, the Pot Kiln at Frilsham, and the multi-award-winning Bell at
Aldworth, which has won the CAMRA local and regional pub of the year many times as well as the
CAMRA national pub of the year award. The Rising Sun, which the Company leases, was resurrected
after it had been closed by the previous tenant. The Company has completely refurbished the property
with a contemporary feel, and it now sells a full range of the Company’s beers and a changing
seasonal food menu which is cooked by the resident chefs.
The Company has a supply agreement with Enterprise Inns to supply draught Good Old Boy. In
addition, the Company’s bottled beers are currently available in Fortnum & Mason and, more locally,
Waitrose. In addition, bespoke ‘own brand’ seasonal bottled beers are brewed exclusively for
Laithwaite’s and Notcutts. Local farm shops, restaurants and bars without cellar facilities also take
bottled beer.
The Company’s products have recently been made available directly from the Company’s website. For
the six month period to 30 September 2013 online sales made up approximately 1 per cent. of total
revenue. Online sales are now growing steadily and for Christmas 2013 customers were able to order
and pre-pay for their Christmas beer for the first time. This not only guaranteed the sales and revenue
in advance but also alleviated congestion in the shop on the days closest to Christmas.
The Company’s customer database now exceeds 1,000 members who have signed up to receive email
newsletters which publicise events, new beers and special offers. Since its inception in September
2013, around 100 members of the ‘Good Old Boys’ Club’ have already committed to an annual
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subscription in return for a discount in the shop and online, and special members-only events to
launch new beers, competitions and other activities.
Future strategy
The Company’s immediate objectives are to further improve sales through carefully targeted
marketing and public relations initiatives and by developing the Company’s sales force through the
appointment of additional personnel. In this way, the Directors aim to generate sufficient additional
business to absorb the current spare capacity of its brewery as soon as possible.
Once the current brewery is operating at or near full capacity and subject to the availability of
finance, the Company will look to acquire a freehold site suitable for a new brewery which would
feature a bigger production plant and could include its own kegging and bottling facilities together
with a visitor centre and retail shop.
As part of its future expansion the Company may consider the possible development of a ‘tied’ estate
of managed pubs in city centres and will also review the possibility of expanding into specifically
targeted export markets such as North America, India and China.
Some of these new initiatives will require additional funding. The Directors intend that whenever the
Company seeks to raise additional equity finance, it will give priority to its existing Shareholders who
will be given the opportunity to subscribe for new issues of shares.
Directors and management
An experienced executive team and staff operate the Company on a day-to-day basis and Share
Options are held by all members of staff with at least two years’ service. The Board comprises an
experienced team with demonstrable credentials and experience of brewing, marketing, sales and
real estate. Biographical information on the Company’s Board is presented below:
•

David Bruce (aged 65) – Chairman
David’s 47 year entrepreneurial career in the international brewing industry started in 1966
when he joined Courage, Barclay & Simonds in Reading, Berkshire as a brewery management
trainee. Having learnt to brew, he became the Brewer and Sales Manager at Theakston’s
Brewery in Yorkshire before co-founding not only Bruce’s Brewery and the Firkin Pubs but also
the Small Independent Brewers Association (SIBA).
Having sold Bruce’s Brewery and The Firkin Pubs for £6.6 million before the age of forty, David
became a co-founder and investor in start-up breweries in Paris, Brooklyn, Denver and Seattle
before returning to the UK to develop his pub interests.
In 1993 David became the largest private shareholder in Grosvenor Inns PLC and, as
Development and Marketing Director, was responsible for rolling out The Slug & Lettuce chain
of branded bars. David was a co-founder and Chief Executive in December 2000 of The Capital
Pub Company PLC, which raised over £15 million under the Enterprise Investment Scheme
(‘EIS’), was floated on AIM in 2007 and sold in July 2011 to Greene King for an enterprise value
of £93 million, providing the original EIS investors a threefold return on their net of tax
investment.
In 2004 David co-founded The Capital Pub Company 2 PLC (now known as Convivial London
Pubs PLC) which raised just under £16 million under the EIS and currently owns and operates
a chain of freehold pubs in London. In November 2006, David became a founding investor in
the EIS-funded Country Food & Dining group of companies, of which he is Chairman. To date,
this group of companies has raised over £7.5 million which has been invested in farm shops
providing not only primarily locally-sourced produce but also cafés. In October 2011 David
co-founded and became Chairman of The City Pub Company (East) PLC and The City Pub
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Company (West) PLC which, having already raised £18 million under the EIS, currently own
thirteen free houses and three microbreweries between Bath and Norwich via London.
In 1994 David received the highest award from The Publican for “Outstanding Services to the
Industry”. In 1996 Grosvenor Inns PLC was voted “The UK’s Best Independent Operator” by
The Publican. In 2010 The Capital Pub Company PLC was voted “Best Managed Pub Company
of the Year” at The Publican Awards.
•

Dave Maggs (aged 60) – Managing Director
Dave (with his wife Helen) established the West Berkshire Brewery in 1995. Dave has been a
Director ever since the Company was incorporated in 1998 and currently owns a 25.2 per cent.
share of the Company.
Prior to establishing the brewery in 1995, Dave trained and practised as a builder, specialising
in traditional roofing and pointing work on historical buildings. Dave had also been a keen
amateur brewer, producing ales at home, and received his first advice on commercial brewing
from Jeff Horne, then brewer at the Tally Ho pub-brewery in Hatherleigh, North Devon.
In 1995 Dave and Helen appointed Total Brewing International to commission the first fivebarrel brewery and also provide them with some initial brewing training. However, Dave felt
the need for more experience and, after enrolling on a Brewers Guild training course, was
placed under the supervision of the late Steve Whisker and Brian Gainsbury at Morrell’s
Brewery in Oxford.

•

Helen Maggs (aged 59) – Director
Helen is focussed on developing the Company’s office and IT systems and also leads the
Company’s branding and design projects. Helen has been a Director since the Company was
incorporated and, owns a 25.1 per cent. share in the Company.
Helen has been instrumental in building the business. She supported Dave in his decision to
sell the family home to fund the construction of their first brewery at Frilsham. While Dave was
developing his skills as a brewer, Helen enrolled on a business course at North Devon College
in Barnstaple and subsequently took responsibility, along with Karen Baum, for installing the
computer systems and running the Company’s office, all whilst bringing up three boys and
helping with the brewing, cask-washing and deliveries. Helen also underwent initial training
with Total Brewing International and became a skilled brewer, often brewing when Dave was
busy delivering beer.
In future, Helen hopes to spend less time on the general management of the Company and
focus more on producing artwork for the business and she and Dave both look forward to
devoting time to some of their other interests that have for the last 18 years played second fiddle
to the Company.

•

Andrew Baum (aged 60) – Director
Professor Andrew Baum has combined business and academic life for the last 25 years. He has
spent the majority of this time working with institutional real estate investors in developing
global property investment strategies. He is chairman of Property Funds Research, a real estate
consulting and research business; chairman of the investment committee for the CBRE Global
Investors’ Multi Manager team; a consulting partner with Internos Real Investors and chairman
of Newcore Capital Management.
Hired as the first director of property research for Prudential in 1987, he founded RES (a
property research company) in 1990 and (with his partners) sold the business to Henderson
Global Investors in 1997. At that time he became Chief Investment Officer for property at
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Henderson and later Director of International Property. In 2001 he founded OPC, a property
research and investment company that was sold to CBRE in 2006.
Andrew held the Chair in Land Management at the University of Reading from 1989 to 2013,
latterly at the Henley Business School at the University of Reading, and was appointed Emeritus
Professor at Reading in 2013. His academic work is now largely based in Cambridge, where
he holds the position of Honorary Professor of Real Estate Investment at the University of
Cambridge and is a Fellow of St John’s College. He is also an Associate Fellow at the Saïd
Business School, Oxford, where he teaches the MBA real estate elective, and an Adjunct
Professor at the Kenan-Flagler Business School, University of North Carolina. A Fellow of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a member of the CFA Institute (UK ASIP), he is the
author or co-author of several textbooks.
In 2002, Andrew founded the Reading Real Estate Foundation, an educational charity
established to support real estate education at the University of Reading.
Andrew is a non-executive director of the Company who advises principally on financial and
property matters and plays a key role in the development of the Company’s long term property
strategy.
Andrew currently owns a 12.5 per cent. share of the Company.
•

Karen Baum (aged 60) – Director
Karen has a degree in marketing and publishing from Oxford Brookes University and has been
a Director since investing in the business in 1998. Karen, like Andrew, owns a 12.5 per cent.
share of the Company.
After a career in retail product management and design with Hallmark Cards, and following a
break to be home-and family-based, Karen originally worked in the Company’s office to assist
Helen in setting up the first IT systems and office procedures. Karen then set about cold-calling
prospective customers to build up sales, and she continued to take responsibility for client care,
sales and marketing until recently when she stepped back from day-to-day involvement,
remaining a non-executive director.

Management Team
•

Will Twomey (aged 29) – Head Brewer
Will joined the Company in 2006 and has been Head Brewer since 2011. Having gained his
General Certificate in Brewing, he is now working towards his Diploma. Will has helped create
many of the Company’s beers, including Mr Swift’s Pale Ale.

•

Tom Lucas (aged 33) – Financial Controller
Tom joined the Company in 2008 after an apprenticeship working in several local pubs. Tom
has since passed all the exams and completed the Practical Experience requirement necessary
for him to qualify as a Chartered Certified Accountant.

•

James Tomlinson (aged 38) – Sales Manager
James joined the Company in 2011 having previously managed a pub and run his own
gardening business.

•

Vicky Mills (aged 38) – Marketing Manager
Vicky joined the team in the summer of 2013. With many years’ experience in the fields of
marketing and intellectual property development, she is now focussing on increasing brand
awareness and loyalty. Having created the West Berkshire Brewery ‘Good Old Boys’ Club’ (a
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subscription based members’ club) and introduced the eNewsletter ‘Ale Mails’, Vicky will
continue to focus on promoting awareness of the Company.
Competition
Within the wider industry, the Company faces competition from larger, longer-established businesses
such as Sharp’s Brewery in Cornwall which brews Doom Bar, the Black Sheep Brewery in Yorkshire,
and Wychwood Brewery in Oxfordshire which brews Hobgoblin. These companies have similar
business models to the Company and predominantly sell their beers and other alcoholic drinks into
various pub chains both locally and nationally, as well as online and through selected retail outlets.
Many new micro-breweries have sprung up recently, especially in London and the South East, which
provide a new source of competition for longer-established breweries such as the Company.
However, this trend has also helped to raise the profile of real ale and small breweries in general.
Dave Maggs, along with the founders of other similarly well-established small breweries, shares the
view that the number of these micro-breweries will at some stage reach saturation point. Additionally,
the Directors believe that the longer-established breweries such as the Company are well placed to
stay the course, maintain their market share and gain further trade as some of the less successful
recent start-ups may fail.
Current trading, future prospects and significant trends
Current trading
Financial information about the Company is set out in Part 4 of this Share Offer Document. The
Company has made a strong start to the current financial year, generating revenues of £761,688 and
profit before tax of £69,408 in the six month period ending 30 September 2013. Over the same six
month period the Company’s net assets increased by 11.6 per cent. to £532,797.
Future prospects
The Directors believe that substantial opportunities exist to increase sales of its award-winning beers
locally, regionally and nationally and intend to use carefully targeted marketing and public relations
initiatives and to develop the Company’s sales force to drive that growth.
The Company is focussed on developing its business further in Berkshire and neighbouring counties
such as Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire, Surrey and Hampshire where the Directors believe there to
be substantial opportunities to increase its distribution to free houses. The Company also currently
supplies its bottled beers to branches of Waitrose where bottles of Good Old Boy are taken to the
local Waitrose distribution hub at Bracknell. Management will seek to supply their products through
other supermarkets in due course.
The Directors believe that the Company has a considerable opportunity to increase sales in the
London market where it has been supplying bottled beer to Fortnum & Mason for several years. A
regular weekly delivery run into London commenced in April 2013 and the Company intends to
minimise transport costs by utilising these existing transport arrangements.
Draught Good Old Boy is delivered weekly into the central hub, which fortuitously is only five miles
from the brewery, for distribution to Enterprise Inns’ pubs in the South of England. The Directors
believe that opportunities exist to supply the Company’s range of beers and ales to other national
chains. The Company also believes that its products would have appeal in certain export markets.
Significant trends
The Directors believe the real ale and craft beer sector is growing strongly. While sales of mainstream
lager have slumped, craft beer and real ale have registered growth at an estimated compound annual
rate of 12 per cent. over the last five years against a contraction of 1.3 per cent. in the industry overall.
This has seen the number of breweries in the UK rise to its highest level in over 70 years as many
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more competitors enter the market at a low level. Specialist wheat beers, Bavarian-style lagers and
fruit beers are creating a niche market as well, driven by the established London breweries such as
Meantime and Zero Degrees, and the interest in European and American beer styles. The Company
is tapping into this market, starting with its Bavarian-style Isis Pilsner.
Lobbying by the Small Independent Brewers Association (‘SIBA’), of which David Bruce was a cofounder in 1980, resulted in the introduction of Progressive Beer Duty (‘PBD’) in 2003.
PBD works on a sliding scale, with a reduced rate, a marginal rate and a full rate of duty depending
upon a brewery’s annual volume production against government-set thresholds.
For breweries with an annual production of less than an average 60 barrels per week, the relief is at
the full allowance of 50 per cent. Marginal relief is awarded to breweries producing between 60 and
704 barrels per week. Breweries producing above 704 barrels per week lose all duty relief and have
to pay the full rate.
The Company currently pays marginal PBD as its production exceeds 60 barrels per week. On its
current site the Company would still benefit from marginal PBD if it were to brew its maximum
capacity of 210 barrels per week.
Share Option Schemes
The Company’s Share Option Schemes are detailed in Part 7 of this Share Offer Document. Employees
currently hold options over 1,800 Ordinary Shares which equates to 8.7 per cent. of the Company’s
equity on a fully diluted basis excluding the options held by David Bruce referred to below.
David Bruce also holds share options in the Company which he will be entitled to exercise in
accordance with any fundraisings which may be undertaken by the Company in the future.
Share Trading Facility
The Company has entered into an agreement with Asset Match Limited to facilitate electronic trading
of the Ordinary Shares, subject always to the Articles. It is anticipated that the Share Trading Facility
will become active on or around 31 January 2015 being the first anniversary of the closing of the
Offer. Prior to the Share Trading Facility becoming active, Asset Match Limited will assist the
Company with the procurement of an ISIN number and will liaise with its existing registrar to become
CREST eligible. These provisions will ease settlement, the administration involved in running the
share register, Shareholder meetings, forms of proxy and dividend payments if made.
The Takeover Code
The Company is not presently a company to which the Takeover Code applies and therefore its
Shareholders are not entitled to the protection afforded by the Takeover Code. Should the Company
re-register as a public limited company or issue a prospectus, it will then be subject to the Takeover
Code. Under Rule 9 of the Takeover Code, where any person acquires, whether by a series of
transactions over a period of time or not, an interest (as defined in the Takeover Code) in shares which
(taken together with shares in which he is already interested and in which persons acting in concert
with him or her are interested) carry 30 per cent. or more of the voting rights of a company that is
subject to the Takeover Code, that person is normally required by the Panel to make a general offer
to all the remaining Shareholders to acquire their shares.
Dividend policy and future funding requirements
Because of the nature of the Company’s business and the stage of its development, the Directors
expect that any funds available will be used to develop the business and that it is unlikely that the
Directors will recommend a dividend in the first few years after the Offer. The Directors believe the
Company should seek to generate capital growth for its Shareholders, but may recommend
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distributions at some future date, depending upon the generation of sustainable profits and when it
becomes commercially prudent to do so.
Corporate governance
While the Company is a private limited company with no short-term plans currently to seek a public
listing, the Directors recognise the importance of sound corporate governance and intend that the
Company should comply with the main provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code and the
QCA Guidelines, insofar as they are appropriate given the Company’s size and stage of development.
The Board is responsible for formulating, reviewing and approving the Company’s strategy, budgets
and corporate actions. The Directors hold board meetings monthly and at other times as and when
required. The Company has also implemented procedures to evaluate any potential related party
transactions, which must be approved by a committee of directors independent from potential
transactions of this nature.
In 2013, the Company established properly constituted committees of the Board with formally
delegated duties and responsibilities. The committees are: audit, remuneration and nomination.
Audit Committee
The audit committee has primary responsibility for monitoring the quality of internal controls and
ensuring that the financial performance of the Company is properly measured and reported on. It will
receive and review reports from the Company’s management and auditors relating to the interim and
annual accounts and the accounting and internal control systems in use throughout the Company.
The audit committee will meet not less than twice in each financial year and will have unrestricted
access to the Company’s auditors. The members of the audit committee are Andrew Baum, Thomas
Lucas and David Bruce.
Remuneration Committee
The remuneration committee will review the performance of the Directors and staff and make
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to their remuneration and terms of service. The
committee will also make recommendations to the Board on proposals for the granting of share
options and other equity incentives pursuant to any share option scheme or equity incentive plan in
operation from time to time. The committee will meet as and when necessary. In exercising this role,
the committee shall have regard to the recommendations put forward in the QCA Guidelines. The
members of the remuneration committee are Andrew Baum and David Bruce.
Nomination Committee
The nomination committee’s primary responsibilities are to regularly review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an
appointment, make recommendations to the Directors on all new appointments of Directors and
senior management, interview nominees, take up references and consider related matters. The
members of the nomination committee are Andrew Baum and David Bruce.
Intellectual property
The Company’s intellectual property comprises know how, copyrights, trademarks, and domain
names.
Know how:

The Company’s know how stems from having qualified brewers in the
brewing team including the experience of Dave Maggs who helped to
design the present brewery. Additionally, David Bruce brings
47 years’ international experience in the brewing industry.
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The Company has registered the copyrights and trademarks for the
names (and the logos and straplines associated with them) of the
majority of their beers with the exception of the ever-changing
monthly specials.
The Company is in the process of registering the copyrights and
trademarks for the names and logos of their newer beers, including
Isis Pilsner and Tamesis Extra Stout, following a re-branding exercise
which was carried out in 2012.

Domain names:

The Company owns several domain name registrations including
‘wbbrew.com’ and ‘wbbrew.co.uk’.

Taxation
General information relating to UK taxation with regard to the Proposals is set out in paragraph 15 of
Part 7 of this Share Offer Document. These statements are intended only as a general guide to current
UK tax law. The statements are not intended to be, nor should they be considered to be, tax advice
to any particular Shareholder or Potential New Shareholder. If you are in any doubt as to your tax
position, you should consult your own independent financial adviser immediately. A Potential New
Shareholder who is subject to tax in a jurisdiction other than the UK should consult his or her
professional advisers immediately.
Further information
Your attention is drawn to Parts 3 to 7 of this Share Offer Document which provide additional
information on the Company. In particular, your attention is drawn to the Risk Factors set out in Part
3 of this Share Offer Document.
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PART 3
RISK FACTORS
The Directors consider that the risks and other factors described below are the most significant and
should be considered carefully together with all the information contained in this Share Offer
Document. It should be noted that the risks described below are not the only risks faced by the
Company; there may be additional risks that the Directors currently consider not to be material or of
which they are currently unaware.
The Directors believe that the following specific factors should be considered carefully in evaluating
whether to make any investment in the Company. An investment in the Company may not be suitable
for all of its recipients. If you are in any doubt about the action you should take, you should consult
a person authorised under the FSMA if you are resident in the United Kingdom or, if you are not
resident in the United Kingdom, an authorised independent adviser who specialises in advising on
the acquisition of shares and other securities.
The risks set out below are not presented in any assumed order of priority. A Potential New
Shareholder ought not to infer any relative importance in relation to the risk factors by reference to
the order in which they appear.
The information below does not therefore purport to be an exhaustive list or summary of the risks
affecting the Company. Potential New Shareholders should consider carefully whether an investment
in the Company is suitable for them, in the light of the matters referred to in this Share Offer
Document, their personal circumstances and the financial resources available to them.
If any of these risks actually occur, the Company’s business, financial condition, results or future
operations could be materially adversely affected. In such case, the value of its Ordinary Shares could
decline and Shareholders may lose all or part of their investment.
Risks associated with investing in unquoted securities
An investment in the Company is speculative and should only be undertaken by Potential New
Shareholders capable of evaluating the potential risks and merits of such an investment and who have
sufficient resources to bear any loss that might result from such an investment.
The Articles are summarised in paragraph 6 of Part 7 of this Share Offer Document. Potential New
Shareholders should review these carefully to ensure they are familiar with the rights and restrictions
pertaining to the Ordinary Shares.
The Company is an unlisted company. There are also no plans to seek a public quotation on any
recognised investment exchange or other market for the Ordinary Shares in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, Shareholders will have neither the rights nor protections available to shareholders in
publicly-quoted companies.
The value of the Ordinary Shares may go down as well as up and Shareholders may not recover the
amount invested. As there is no recognised market for the Ordinary Shares, it may be difficult for
Shareholders to sell their shares at what they consider to be a reasonable price and in some
circumstances it may be difficult to sell them at any price or otherwise realise their investment. In
addition, it may be difficult to obtain reliable information about the value of their shares or the extent
of the risks to which they are exposed. In the worst case scenario, the Company may not be successful
and Shareholders could lose all of the money that they have invested. Potential New Shareholders
should therefore not invest in the Company unless they have carefully thought about whether they
can afford the total loss of their investment and whether such an investment is right for them.
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Risks associated with the Company’s operations and business
The Directors expect the Company’s business plan to evolve as the Company develops and there is
therefore no guarantee that the development of the business will proceed as envisaged in this Share
Offer Document.
Competition risks
The Company sells its beer in competition with other local companies and in competition with larger
regional and national brewers. The levels of sales and prices may be adversely affected by
competition from other brewers located in the UK or overseas.
Risks relating to the market for beer
The demand for beer is dependent on a number of factors including overall economic conditions,
taste and fashion, levels of taxation and duty and licensing laws. It is possible that economic and
political factors may decrease the disposable income that customers have available to spend or may
adversely affect customers’ confidence and willingness to spend. This could affect the performance
of the Company’s client pubs and thereby affect demand for the Company’s products.
Risks relating to suppliers
The Company is reliant on positive and continuing relationships with its suppliers. Termination of any
supply agreements, variations in their terms or the failure of a key supplier to comply with its
obligations under these agreements (including if a key supplier were to become insolvent) could have
a negative effect on the Company.
Risks relating to raw materials and ingredients
The Company sources its ingredients as far as possible in or around the county of Berkshire and, if
that is not possible, within the United Kingdom. Forward contracts have been negotiated for both malt
and hops to guarantee supply and price long term, although severe adverse weather conditions or
other issues could still affect the supply (and cost) of locally-sourced ingredients, thereby adversely
affecting the price or quality of the Company’s products.
An increase in the cost of raw materials or energy could affect the Company’s profitability.
Commodity price changes may result in unexpected increases in the cost of raw materials, glass
bottles and other packaging materials used by the Company. The Company may also be adversely
affected by shortages of raw materials or packaging materials. In addition, energy cost increases could
result in higher transportation, freight and other operating costs. The Company may not be able to
increase its prices to offset these increased costs without suffering reduced volume, sales and
operating profit.
Reputational risks
It is important that the Company has the ability to maintain and enhance the image of its existing
products. The image and reputation of the Company’s products may be adversely affected by various
matters including litigation, complaints from customers and/or regulatory bodies resulting from
quality failure, illness or other health concerns. Such concerns, even when unsubstantiated, could be
harmful to the Company’s image and the reputation of its products.
Deterioration in the Company’s brand equity (brand image, reputation and product quality) may have
a negative effect on its operating results, financial condition and prospects.
Dependence on the Directors and senior management
The Company’s future success is substantially dependent on the continuing services and performance
of the Directors and members of the Company’s management and the ability of the Company to
continue to attract and retain highly-skilled and qualified members of staff. There can be no assurance
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that the Directors or members of the management team will remain with the Company. The loss of
the services of any of the Directors, members of the Company’s management or other key employees
could damage the business of the Company.
Risks relating to legislation, regulation and licensing
The brewing industry in the United Kingdom is highly regulated at both national and local levels and
brewing operations require licences, permits and approvals. Delays and failures to obtain, or the
withdrawal of, required licences or permits could negatively affect the Company’s operations.
The United Kingdom government has sponsored campaigns against excessive drinking and these,
together with licensing reforms relating to the sale of alcoholic beverages and changes in drinkdriving laws, may reduce demand for the Company’s products. Any change in the brewing legislation
could also adversely impact the products which the Company now produces or may produce in the
future.
The Company seeks to comply at all times with applicable health and safety, hygiene and
environmental legislation and regulations. Failure to comply with such regulations in the future could
give rise to penalties and other financial costs and damage to the Company’s reputation. Changes in
such legislation or regulation may impose additional costs or restrictions on the Company thereby
affecting its profits and prospects.
Raising of future finance by the Company
The Directors believe that the Company will need to raise additional funds in the future and believe
that future fundraisings would most likely be by way of a placing of shares in the Company.
Further equity financing may be dilutive to existing Shareholders or result in the issuance of securities
whose rights, preferences and privileges are senior to those of the owners of Ordinary Shares.
If the Company is unable to secure additional funds when needed or cannot do so on terms it finds
acceptable, it may be unable to expand its operations, take full advantage of future commercial
opportunities or respond adequately to competitive pressures, any of which may have an adverse
effect on its business and results of its operations.
Borrowings
The Company may elect to fund its future development partially through borrowings. The extent of
borrowings and their terms will depend on the Company’s ability to obtain credit facilities, the
lenders’ estimates of the stability of the Company’s cash flow and the debt market at any time.
Furthermore, to the extent that the Company funds its activities through borrowing, it will be affected
by changes in interest rates. Rising interest rates would have an adverse effect on the Company’s
financial performance by increasing the Company’s cost of capital.
If any future funding requirements are met through additional debt financing, the Company may be
required to adhere to covenants restricting its future operational and financial activities.
Financial controls and internal reporting procedures
The Company has established financial controls and internal reporting procedures that the Directors
consider appropriate for the Company’s current size and stage of development. As the Company
grows, it may be necessary to adopt systems and controls more appropriate for a larger organisation.
Any failure by management to manage effectively the implementation of these systems and controls
as the Company grows could have an adverse effect on the Company’s business and financial
performance and hinder its ability to prepare reliable financial statements in the future.
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General risk factors
General business risks
The activities of the Company are subject to the usual commercial risks and factors, such as
competition and economic conditions, which may generally affect the Company’s ability to generate
income or achieve its objectives.
Litigation risk
Legal proceedings may arise from time to time in the course of the Company’s business. The Company
cannot preclude the possibility that litigation may be brought against it or anticipate the costs of
dealing with such litigation. Any such litigation may have an adverse effect on the Company.
Taxation risk
Statements in this Share Offer Document concerning the taxation of the Company and Potential New
Shareholders are based upon current tax law and practice which is subject to change. Any change in
the Company’s tax status or the tax applicable to holding Ordinary Shares, or in taxation legislation
or its interpretation, could affect the value of the investments held by the Company and the
Company’s ability to provide returns to Shareholders, and/or alter the post-tax returns to Shareholders.
Changes in legislation and fiscal and regulatory policies
The Company’s financial performance will be determined, in part, by the legislative and regulatory
framework in which it operates. The Company is therefore subject to risks resulting from changes in
legislation and regulation which could have an adverse effect on the results of operations of the
Company.
General risks relating to investing in the Ordinary Shares
Personal circumstances of the Potential New Shareholder
A Potential New Shareholder should consider with care whether an investment in the Company is
suitable for him or her in light of his or her personal circumstances and the financial resources
available to him or her. An investment in the Company is only suitable for Potential New Shareholders
capable of evaluating the risks and merits of such investment and who have sufficient resources to
bear any loss which may result from the investment. Potential New Shareholders should therefore
consult an independent financial adviser before investing.
Nature of investment
Investment in the Company should not be regarded as short-term in nature. There can be no
guarantee that any appreciation in the value of the Company’s assets will occur or that the objectives
of the Company will be achieved. Potential New Shareholders may not get back the full amount
initially invested. The prices of shares and the income derived from them can go down as well as up.
Past performance is not necessarily a guide to the future. There is also the possibility that the market
value of an asset of the Company may not reflect the true underlying value of the Company.
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PART 4
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
The Company’s annual report and accounts covering the three financial years ended 31 March 2013,
2012 and 2011 and the audited interim accounts for the six months ended 30 September 2013 are
set out in the Appendix to this document. The auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on the
accounts for the six months ended 30 September 2013. The accounts for the two years ending
31 March 2013 received an unqualified opinion in all respects with the exception of stock.
The results for the above accounting periods are summarised below.
The financial information set out in this Part 4 does not constitute statutory accounts within the
meaning of Section 434(3) of the Act.
Financial results

6 months
ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 September 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013
2013
2012
2011
(Audited)
(Audited)
(Audited) (Unaudited)
£
£
£
£

Turnover
Cost of sales

761,688 1,210,987 1,154,290
(474,521) (774,291) (693,650)

892,320
(522,268)

Gross profit
Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Net interest income/(expense)

287,167
1,584
(218,861)
(482)

436,696
3,167
(447,079)
(651)

460,640
—
(293,838)
294

370,052
13,578
(244,481)
(2,857)

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation

69,408
(13,970)

(7,867)
(13,208)

167,096
(56,794)

136,292
(30,032)

Profit on ordinary activities after tax

55,438

(21,075)

110,302

106,260

EBITDA

93,734

46,840

182,608

169,972

Commentary on the Company’s financial performance
The small loss in the financial year 31 March 2013 can be attributed to two major factors.
A deliberate increase in overheads was directly associated with the move to a new expanded
brewery, and the consequent investment in sales staff needed to help to grow output in line with a
much expanded capacity. Overheads were up 44 per cent. in 2012/13. This increase was in part due
to expenses associated with the vacating of and making necessary improvements to the interior of the
Company’s sole pub, the Rising Sun, which led to unbudgeted costs totalling £40,000. A complete
rebranding exercise for the Company also added another £30,000 of one-off costs. Both of these costs
were offset against profits in the year ending 31 March 2013. The Company regards these
expenditures as investments in the future of its business.
Secondly, the inclement summer weather in 2012, which was officially recorded as the wettest
summer for 100 years, caused the cancellation of several regular, profitable events for the first time
in the Company’s history, which contributed to limiting turnover growth to 7 per cent. This was well
below the 29 per cent. growth observed from the financial years 2010/2011 to 2011/2102 and the
19 per cent. average annual turnover growth enjoyed since 1998.
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The Company has since seen increased turnover and has returned to profit in the six months ending
30 September 2013.
Summarised balance sheets of the Company at the ends of the relevant accounting periods are set out
below:
Balance Sheet at:

30 September
2013
£

31 March
2013
£

31 March
2012
£

31 March
2011
£

410,966

428,968

375,375

298,261

116,240
173,821
164,652

96,642
116,702
125,071

93,231
105,234
152,372

65,550
90,637
126,472

Total Assets

865,679

767,383

726,212

580,920

Liabilities
Current
Long term
Provisions

(223,794)
(47,421)
(61,667)

(173,301)
(53,279)
(63,444)

(159,675)
(0)
(50,236)

(154,537)
(0)
(2,517)

Net assets

532,797

477,359

516,301

423,866

Assets
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Stocks
Debtors
Cash

29

17280 West Berkshire Brewery Info Memo:Layout 1

20/12/2013

17:09

Page 30

PART 5
DETAILS OF THE OFFER
1.

Size of Offer, Utilisation of Proceeds and Payment

The Offer is being undertaken to raise up to £2,000,000 from Potential New Shareholders to acquire
up to 11,516 Ordinary Shares for £1,439,500 from the Founding Shareholders (the ‘Founders’ Offer
Subscription’). Should Potential New Shareholders apply for more than the Founders’ Offer
Subscription, any excess may be used to subscribe for new Ordinary Shares at the Offer Price up to
a value of £560,500 (the ‘Excess Subscription’).
The proceeds of any Excess Subscription will be used by the Company to provide additional working
capital for the Company.
Potential New Shareholders will need to pay for any Ordinary Shares applied for by cheque or
banker’s draft on application. In the event that Applications are received in excess of the Founders’
Offer Subscription and the Excess Subscription, (together the ‘Full Subscription’ of £2,000,000), the
Directors reserve the right to use their absolute discretion in the allocation of successful Applications,
although they intend giving priority to the earliest Applicants. Potential New Shareholders are
therefore encouraged to submit their Application Forms early.
The minimum investment for each Applicant under the Offer is £1,000 and the maximum investment
for each Applicant under the Offer is £250,000.
The Offer is not underwritten or guaranteed.
2.

Costs and Net Proceeds

All costs and expenses incurred in relation to the Offer, including stamp duty payable on share
transfers, will be paid by the Company out of its existing funds. The costs of the Offer are not expected
to exceed £82,500 plus VAT.
3.

Transfer and allotment of Ordinary Shares

Any new Ordinary Shares will be issued on a pari passu basis with the existing Ordinary Shares,
having all the same rights including with regard to dividends and other distributions declared, paid
or made by the Company thereafter. Any such new Ordinary Shares will be issued in registered form
and will be transferable in certificated form, like all the existing Ordinary Shares.
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PART 6
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER AND
SUBSCRIPTION PROCEDURE
1.

Applications must be made by completing the Application Form, including the signature and
dating thereof.

2.

Completed Application Forms must be sent to Share Registrars Limited whose address appears
on the Application Form.

3.

The subscription list will open at 9.00 am on 30 December 2013 and close on 31 January
2014. In their absolute discretion the Directors also reserve the right to extend the closing date
to a date not later than 28 February 2014. Application monies will be retained pending transfer
or allotment of the Offer Shares as appropriate. Any interest on application monies will be paid
to the Company.

4.

By completing and delivering an Application Form the Applicant irrevocably offers to acquire
the number of Ordinary Shares specified on their Application Form or any smaller amount for
which such Application is accepted at the relevant Offer Price subject to the provisions of this
Share Offer Document, these Terms and Conditions of the Offer and the Articles. Payment must
be made by cheque or banker’s draft made payable to Share Registrars Limited re The West
Berkshire Brewery Company Limited for the amount payable on the Application Form. The
completion and presentation of an Application Form, accompanied by a cheque, constitutes an
undertaking that the cheque will be honoured on first presentation.

5.

The minimum investment is £1,000. Thereafter, the Application for Offer Shares must be in
multiples of £1,000, up to a maximum of £250,000.

6.

The Directors reserve the right in their absolute discretion and without recourse to a Potential
New Shareholder, to reject any Application in whole or in part without giving any reason. The
remittance which is the subject of any rejected Applications, in whole or in part, will be
returned without interest within five days of the final closing of the Offer.

7.

In the event that Applications are received in excess of the Full Subscription under the Offer,
the Directors reserve the right to use their absolute discretion in the allocation of Ordinary
Shares to successful Applicants and intend giving priority to the earliest Applicants.

8.

It is a term of the Offer that, to ensure compliance with the Money Laundering Regulations
2007 as subsequently amended, Share Registrars Limited may at its absolute discretion require
verification of identity (including by electronic means) from any person lodging an Application
Form and, without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, in particular any person who
either:
a.

tenders payment by way of cheque or banker’s draft drawn on an account in the name
of a person or persons other than the Applicant; or

b.

appears to be acting on behalf of some other person.

In either case, verification of the identity of the Applicant may be required.
If within a reasonable period of time following a request for verification of identity, and in any
case by no later than 12.00 noon on the closing date Share Registrars Limited has not received
evidence satisfactory as aforesaid, the Company may, at its absolute discretion, reject any such
Application in which event the remittance submitted in respect of that Application will be
returned to the Applicant without interest (and without prejudice to the rights of the Company
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to undertake proceedings to recover any loss suffered by it as a result of the failure to produce
satisfactory evidence of identity).
9.

Where possible, Applicants should make payment by their own cheque. If a banker’s draft or
building society cheque is used, the Applicant should:
a.

write his/her name and address on the back of the cheque or draft and, in the case of an
individual, record his/her date of birth against his/her name; and

b.

ask the bank or building society (if relevant) to endorse on the reverse of the draft or
cheque the full name and account number of the person whose account is being debited
and stamp such endorsement.
The above information is provided by way of guidance to reduce the likelihood of
difficulties, delays and potential rejection of an Application Form but without limiting
Share Registrars Limited’s right to require verification of identity as indicated above.

c.

Applications received via FCA financial intermediaries and utilising a cheque drawn on
the FCA regulated firm’s account are acceptable.

THIRD PARTY CHEQUES WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THOSE MENTIONED ABOVE WILL BE
RETURNED.
10.

No commission is payable to intermediaries introducing Potential New Investors.

11.

Due completion of the agent’s box on the Application Form warrants that the agent is duly
authorised to transact investments of this type under the FSMA, and that they undertake to fulfil
responsibility for the identification procedures necessary under the Money Laundering
Regulations and Guidance Notes issued by the Joint Money Laundering Steering Group and
confirm that they have completed their own Know your Client procedures successfully.

12.

No Application will be accepted by fax.

13.

All cheques, certificates and other Share Offer Documents despatched by post will be at the
risk of the Applicant.

14.

Applications will be irrevocable and Applicants will have no right of cancellation. However, in
the event of any requirement for the Company to publish a supplementary Share Offer
Document, Applicants who have yet to be entered into the Company’s register of members will
be given not less than two days to withdraw their Application.

15.

No person receiving a copy of this Share Offer Document or an Application Form in any
territory other than the UK may treat the same as constituting an invitation or offer to him or
her, nor should he or she in any event use such form, unless in the relevant territory such an
invitation or offer could lawfully be made to him or her or such form could lawfully be used
without contravention of any registration or other regulatory or legal requirements without any
action being required by or on behalf of the Company for the purpose of making such invitation
or offer lawful in such territory.
It is a condition of any Application by a person outside the UK that he must satisfy himself as
to the full observance of the laws of any relevant territory in connection with the Application
including obtaining any requisite or governmental or other consents which may be required
and to comply with the requisite formalities, and paying any issue, transfer or other taxes due
in any such territory. The Company reserves the right in its absolute discretion to reject
Applications made by any person outside the UK.
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PART 7
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
1.

Responsibility

1.1

The Directors, whose names and functions are set out in Part 2 of this Share Offer Document,
accept responsibility, both collectively and individually, for the information contained in this
Share Offer Document. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have
taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this
Share Offer Document for which they are responsible is in accordance with the facts and does
not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. In connection with this Share
Offer Document, no person is authorised to give any information or make any representations
other than as contained in this Share Offer Document and, if given or made, such information
or representations must not be relied upon as having been so authorised.

2.

The Company

2.1

The business of WBB was established in 1995 by David Maggs and Helen Maggs who until
1998 operated WBB as self-employed proprietors.

2.2

The Company was incorporated in order to acquire the business of WBB. It was registered in
England and Wales on 16 November 1998 with registered number 03667842, as a company
limited by shares under the Companies Act 1985. The Company is domiciled in the UK. The
Company is not regulated in the UK or elsewhere nor is it subject to regulatory review.

2.3

The principal legislation under which the Company operates is the Act. The liability of the
Shareholders is limited.

2.4

The registered office of the Company is at Ross Brooke, 2 Old Bath Road, Newbury, Berkshire,
RG14 1QL.

2.5

The telephone number of the registered office is 01635 555666.

2.6

The Company’s accounting reference date is 31 March.

3.

Subsidiary undertakings

3.1

As at the date of this Share Offer Document, the Company has no subsidiaries or interests in
any other unincorporated entity.

4.

Share capital

4.1

As at the date of this Share Offer Document, the issued share capital of the Company consists
of 19,000 Ordinary Shares. The Company’s Ordinary Shares are in registered form and are
capable of transfer only in certificated form.

4.2

Save as set out in paragraph 5 of this Part 7, there has been no share issue by the Company
since incorporation.

5.

Share capital history

5.1

The Company was incorporated on 16 November 1998 with an authorised share capital of
£1,000 represented by 1,000 ordinary shares of £1 each, of which 2 were issued, nil paid, to
the subscribers to the Memorandum of Association.

5.2

On 1 September 1999, the 2 subscriber shares were subdivided into 20 Ordinary Shares and
transferred to David Maggs (10 Ordinary Shares) and Helen Maggs (10 Ordinary Shares).
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5.3

On 1 September 1999, 3,333 Ordinary Shares were issued to Andrew Baum.

5.4

On 1 September 1999, 9,980 Ordinary Shares were issued to David Maggs (4,990 Ordinary
Shares) and Helen Maggs (4,990 Ordinary Shares).

5.5

On 1 June 2000, 702 Ordinary Shares were issued to Andrew Baum.

5.6

On 1 June 2000, 965 Ordinary Shares were issued to David Maggs (483 Ordinary Shares) and
Helen Maggs (482 Ordinary Shares).

5.7

On 23 July 2002, 4,000 Ordinary Shares were issued to: David Maggs (1,500 Ordinary
Shares), Helen Maggs (1,500 Ordinary Shares), Andrew Baum (500 Ordinary Shares) and
Karen Baum (500 Ordinary Shares).

5.8

On 24 July 2002, 1,000 Ordinary Shares were issued to Hugo Llewelyn.

5.9

On 31 December 2004, 1,000 Ordinary Shares, which had been owned by Hugo Llewelyn,
were cancelled.

5.10

The current shareholdings in the Company are set out in paragraph 9 of this Part 7.

6.

Memorandum and Articles of Association

6.1

Memorandum of Association
The principal objects of the Company (which, by virtue of section 28 (1) of the Act, became
part of the Articles on 1 October 2009) are to carry on the business, inter alia, of a general
commercial company.

6.2

Articles of Association
The Articles contain, inter alia, provisions to the following effect:

6.2.1

Voting rights
Subject to paragraph 6.2.6 below, and to any special rights or restrictions as to voting, upon
which any shares may for the time being be held, on a show of hands every Shareholder who
(being an individual) is present in person or (being a corporation) is present by its duly
appointed representative shall have one vote and on a poll every Shareholder present in
person or by representative or proxy shall have one vote for every Ordinary Share in the
capital of the Company held by him or her. A proxy need not be a Shareholder.

6.2.2

Variation of rights
Whenever the share capital of the Company is divided into different classes of shares the
special rights attached to any class may be varied or abrogated either with the consent in
writing of the holders of 75 per cent. of the voting rights attaching to the issued shares of that
class or with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution passed at a separate general meeting
of the holders of the shares of that class and may be so varied and abrogated whilst the
Company is a going concern or during or in contemplation of a winding-up. To every such
separate general meeting (except an adjourned meeting), the quorum shall be a number of
persons at least holding or representing by proxy at least 50 per cent. in nominal value of the
issued shares which have voting rights attached to them of that class.

6.2.3

Alteration of capital
The Company may by ordinary resolution increase its capital, consolidate all or any of its
share capital into shares of a larger nominal value, subdivide all or any of its shares into shares
of a smaller nominal value, cancel any shares not taken, or agreed to be taken, by any person
and diminish the amount of its capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled.
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The Company may, subject to any conditions, authorities and consents required by law, by
special resolution reduce or cancel its share capital or any capital redemption reserve or share
premium account.
Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the Company may purchase its
own shares (including any redeemable shares) with and subject to all prior authorities of the
Company in general meeting as specified under the Act provided that the Company may not
purchase any of its shares if, as a result of the purchase of the shares, there would no longer
be any Shareholder holding shares in the Company other than redeemable shares.
6.2.4

Transfer of Ordinary Shares
A Shareholder may transfer all or any of his Ordinary Shares by transfer in writing in any usual
or common form or in any other form acceptable to the Directors. The instrument of transfer
of a certificated share shall be signed by or on behalf of the transferor and, if the share is not
fully paid, by or on behalf of the transferee.
The Directors shall refuse to register any transfer of an Ordinary Share and shall not register
any transfer of an Ordinary Share prohibited by or not effected in accordance with these
Articles and any transfer to a person who they know (with no obligation on the Directors to
make enquiries) to be a minor, bankrupt or of unsound mind.

6.2.5

6.2.6

Dividends
(a)

Subject to the Act or any other statutes in force, the Company may by ordinary
resolution in a general meeting declare dividends provided that no dividend shall be
paid otherwise than out of profits available for the purpose and no dividend shall
exceed the amount recommended by the Directors. The Directors may from time to
time declare and pay interim dividends on shares of any class of such amounts and on
such dates in respect of such periods as appear to the Directors to be justified. All
dividend payments shall be non-cumulative.

(b)

Subject to the rights of any persons, if any, holding shares with special dividend rights,
and subject to paragraph 6.2.6 below, all dividends shall be apportioned and paid pro
rata according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares during any portion
or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid. No amount paid or
credited as paid in advance of calls shall be regarded as paid on shares for this purpose.

(c)

All dividends unclaimed for a period of 12 years from the date on which such dividend
was declared or became due for payment shall be forfeited and shall revert to the
Company.

(d)

There is no fixed date on which an entitlement to dividend arises.

(e)

There are no dividend restrictions attaching to the Ordinary Shares, provided they are
fully paid up. Payments of dividends may be made by any method the directors
consider appropriate and on a cash dividend there are no special arrangements for nonresident Shareholders. The Directors may make such arrangements as they consider
expedient in connection with a dividend payment in shares to deal with any legal or
other difficulties that may arise in any territory in which non-resident Shareholders are
present.

Suspension of rights
If a Shareholder or any other person appearing to be interested in shares of the Company fails
after the date of service of a notice to comply with the statutory disclosure requirements then:
(a)

If the shares are held in certificated form from the time of such failure until not more
than 7 days after the earlier of (a) receipt by the Company of notice that there has been
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a transfer of the shares by an arm’s length sale and (b) due compliance, to the
satisfaction of the Company, with the statutory disclosure requirements (if the Directors
so resolve) such Shareholder shall not be entitled to vote or to exercise any right
conferred by membership at meetings of the Company in respect of the shares which
are the subject of such notice. Where the holding represents more than 0.25 per cent.
of the issued shares of that class, the payment of dividends may be withheld, and such
Shareholder shall not be entitled to transfer such shares otherwise than by an arm’s
length sale.
(b)

6.2.7

If the shares are held in uncertificated form, the Directors may serve upon the registered
holder of such shares a notice requiring the holder to convert his holding of
uncertificated shares into certificated form within such period as is specified in the
notice and require the holder to continue to hold such shares in certificated form for so
long as such failure continues. If the holder shall fail to convert his holding within the
specified time, the Directors are empowered to authorise some person to take all such
steps and issue such instructions as may be necessary in the name of the holder of such
shares to effect the conversion of such shares to certificated form. Such steps shall be
as effective as if they had been taken by the registered holder of the relevant
uncertificated shares. Once such conversion to certificated form has been effected, the
above rules in relation to shares in certificated form shall apply.

Return of capital
Subject to any preferred, deferred or other special rights, or subject to such conditions or
restrictions to which any shares in the capital of the Company may be issued, on a windingup or other return of capital, the holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled to share in any surplus
assets pro rata to the amount paid up on their Ordinary Shares. A liquidator may, with the
sanction of a special resolution of the Company and any other sanction required by the 1985
Act, divide amongst the Shareholders in specie or in kind the whole or any part of the assets
of the Company (whether or not the assets shall consist of property of one kind or shall consist
of property of different kinds), those assets to be set at such value as he deems fair. A liquidator
may also vest the whole or any part of the assets of the Company for the benefit of the
Shareholders as the liquidator shall think fit.

6.2.8

Pre-emption rights
The Articles contain pre-emption in respect of transfers of Ordinary Shares.
The Shareholders have statutory pre-emption rights under the Act in respect of the allotment
of new Ordinary Shares. These statutory pre-emption rights would require the Company to
offer new Ordinary Shares for allotment to existing Shareholders on a pro rata basis before
allotting them to other persons.

6.2.9

General meetings
The Directors shall convene a general meeting whenever they think fit. A general meeting
shall also be convened on a requisition of the Shareholders as provided for by the Act or, if
the Directors fail to convene a general meeting within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition, a general meeting may be convened by such requisitionists as
provided by the Act.
14 clear days’ notice in respect of a general meeting shall be given to all Shareholders (other
than those who, under the provisions of the Articles or otherwise, are not entitled to receive
notices from the Company) and to the Directors and the auditors for the time being of the
Company, but the accidental omission to give such notice to, or the non-receipt of such notice
by, any Shareholder or Director or the auditors shall not invalidate any resolution passed or
any proceeding at such meeting.
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Every notice shall specify the place, the day and the hour of the meeting and, in the case of
special business, the nature of such business and shall also state with reasonable prominence
that a Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy to attend
and vote on a show of hands or a poll thereat instead of him or her and that the proxy need
not also be a Shareholder. In the case of a meeting convened for passing a special resolution
the notice shall also specify the intention to propose the resolution as a special resolution.
For the purpose of determining which persons are entitled to attend and vote at any general
meeting and how many votes such persons may cast, the Company may specify in the relevant
notice of the general meeting a time, not less than forty-eight hours before the time fixed for
the meeting, by which a person must be entered on the register of Shareholders in order to
have the right to attend and vote at the meeting.
No business shall be transacted unless the requisite quorum is present when the meeting
proceeds to business.
The quorum for general meetings and adjourned general meetings shall be any one or more
Qualifying Person present at the meeting and representing the holders of over 50 per cent. of
the Ordinary Shares. A ‘Qualifying Person’ means (i) an individual who is a Shareholder
present in person or by proxy; and (ii) a corporation which is a Shareholder present by a duly
authorised representative.
If within thirty minutes from the time appointed for the general meeting convened on the
requisition of the Shareholders a quorum is not present, the meeting shall be dissolved. In any
other case the meeting shall be adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time
and place, or to such other day as the chairman will determine, being not less than 5 clear
days thereafter.
6.2.10 Directors
The business and affairs of the Company shall be managed by the Directors, who may
exercise all such powers of the Company as are not by any statute or by the Articles required
to be exercised by the Company in general meeting and for such purposes the Directors may
establish any local group, divisional board, agency or committee for managing any of the
affairs of the Company, either in the United Kingdom or elsewhere, and may appoint any
persons to be Shareholders of such local group, divisional board, agency or committee or any
managers or agents.
Subject to the Articles, the Directors may meet together for the dispatch of business, adjourn
and otherwise regulate their meeting as they think fit. The quorum necessary for the
transaction of the business is three. A meeting of the Directors at which a quorum is present
shall be competent to exercise all powers and discretions for the time being exercisable by
the Directors.
Save as mentioned below, a Director shall not vote in respect of any matter in which he has,
directly or indirectly, any material interest (otherwise than by virtue of his interest in shares or
debentures or other securities of the Company) or in relation to which he has a duty which
conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the Company. A Director shall not be counted
in the quorum at any meeting in relation to any resolution in which he is debarred from
voting.

37

17280 West Berkshire Brewery Info Memo:Layout 1

20/12/2013

17:09

Page 38

Subject to the Act, a Director shall (in the absence of some other material interest than is
indicated below), be entitled to vote (and be counted in the quorum) in respect of any
resolution concerning, inter alia, any of the following matters, namely:
(a)

the giving to him or her of any guarantee, security or indemnity in respect of money
lent or obligation incurred by him or her at the request of or for the benefit of the
Company;

(b)

giving to a third party any guarantee, security or indemnity in respect of a debt or
obligation of the Company for which he himself or she herself has assumed
responsibility in whole or in part either alone or jointly with others, under a guarantee
or indemnity or by the giving of security;

(c)

where the Company is offering securities in which offer the director is or may be
entitled to participate as the holder of securities or in the underwriting or subunderwriting in which the Director is to participate;

(d)

relating to another Company in which he or she and any persons connected with him
or her do not to his knowledge hold an interest in shares representing one per cent. or
more of either any class of the equity share capital, or the voting rights in such
company;

(e)

relating to an arrangement for the benefit of the employees of the Company which does
not award him or her any privilege or benefit not generally awarded to the employees
to whom such arrangement relates; or

(f)

concerning insurance which the Company proposes to maintain or purchase for the
benefit of Directors or the benefit of persons including Directors.

Subject to the provisions of the Act every Director, secretary or other officer of the Company
(other than an auditor) is entitled to be indemnified against all costs, charges, losses, damages
and liabilities incurred by him or her in the actual purported exercise or discharge of his/her
duties or exercise of his/her powers or otherwise in relation to them.
6.2.11 Leavers
If an Employee Shareholder ceases for any reason whatsoever to be employed by the
Company then at any time within 12 months of such cessation the Directors may serve a
notice on that Employee Shareholder notifying him that he is deemed with immediate effect
to have either (i) offered to sell back to the Company some or all of the Ordinary Shares held
by him or (ii) given a transfer notice in respect of some or all of the Ordinary Shares held by
him.
The price payable per Ordinary Share shall be (i) in the case of a Good Leaver (as defined in
the Articles) the Fair Price (as defined in the Articles) and (ii) in the case of a Bad Leaver (as
defined in the Articles) the lesser of the subscription price paid for such Shares and the Fair
Price.
In addition, from the date on which the Employee Shareholder becomes a Leaver, all Ordinary
Shares held by such Employee shall cease to confer the right to be entitled to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the Company or at any meeting of the holders
of any class of shares in the capital of the Company and such Ordinary Shares shall not be
counted in determining the total number of votes which may be cast at any such meeting or
required for the purposes of a written resolution of any Shareholders or class of Shareholders
or any consent under the Articles or otherwise.

38

17280 West Berkshire Brewery Info Memo:Layout 1

20/12/2013

17:09

Page 39

7.

Premises

7.1

The Company occupies the following leasehold premises:
Address

Until

Current Annual Rent (£ per annum)

The Flour Barn
Frilsham Home Farm
Yattendon
Thatcham
Berkshire
RG18 0XT

21 November 2026

35,734 plus RPI on three-yearly
increments when a break clause
may be invoked

The Rising Sun
Stockcross
Newbury
Berkshire
RG20 8LG

16 November 2025

18,000 subject to upwards
adjustment on rent review
days (being 16 November 2015
and 2020).

8.

Employees

8.1

The Company presently has 13 employees and the five Directors.

9.

Directors

9.1

As at the date of this Share Offer Document, none of the Directors (or any person connected
with a Director) within the meaning of section 252 to 255 of the Act has or will have an
interest in the Company’s issued share capital save as set out below:
As at the date of this Share
Offer Document
Percentage of
Number of
Existing Ordinary
Ordinary Shares
Shares

Director

David Bruce*
David Maggs
Helen Maggs
Andrew Baum
Karen Baum
Total
*

1,267
4,788
4,778
2,375
2,375

6.7
25.2
25.1
12.5
12.5

15,583

82.0

David Bruce’s Ordinary Shares are owned jointly with his wife, Louise Bruce, and their
private investment company, Brew Securities Limited (‘Brew’).

David Bruce is the only Director who has been granted share options, details of which are
outlined paragraph 11 of this Part 7
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In addition to the interests referred to in paragraph 9.1 above, the following persons currently
have an interest in the issued share capital of the Company.
As at the date of this Share
Offer Document
Percentage of
Number of
Existing Ordinary
Ordinary Shares
Shares

Director

Jonathan Short*
Will Twomey
Tom Lucas
Tom Meads
Steve Kirby

3,167
80
80
10
80

16.7
0.4
0.4
0.1
0.4

Total

3,417

18.0

*Jonathan Short’s holding of Ordinary Shares is held through Hornbuckle Mitchell Trustees
Limited.
9.3

None of the persons set out in paragraphs 9.1 and 9.2 above have any voting rights in respect
of the Company (issued or to be issued) which differ from any other Shareholder.

9.4

Save as set out below, no directorships of any company, other than the Company, have been
held or occupied over the previous five years by any of the Directors, nor over that period has
any of the Directors been a partner in a partnership.
Director

Current Directorships

Former Directorships

David Bruce

Ace High Enterprises Limited
Brew Securities Ltd
Country Food & Dining (2) Ltd
Country Food & Dining (3) Ltd
Country Food & Dining (4) Ltd
Country Food & Dining (5) Ltd
The Burlington Arms Pub Co Ltd
The City Pub Company (East) PLC
The City Pub Company (West) PLC
The Country Food & Dining
Company Limited
The West Berkshire Brewery
Company Limited

Camm & Hooper Limited
CF & D directors and employee
benefit LLP (LLP member)
QAS Enterprises Limited
The Capital Pub Company Limited

Dave Maggs

The West Berkshire Brewery
Company Limited
D Maggs & Co. Limited

Helen Maggs

The West Berkshire Brewery
Company Limited
D Maggs & Co. Limited
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Director

Current Directorships

Former Directorships

Andrew Baum

Andrew Baum & Co. Limited
Internos Global LLP (LLP member)
Newcore Capital Management
Finance LLP ( LLP Designated
member )
Property Funds Intelligence
Limited
Property Funds Research Limited
Real Estate Futures Limited
The West Berkshire Brewery
Company Limited

CBRE Global New Shareholders
Corporate Director UK Limited
CBRE Global New Shareholders
GMM UK Limited
Reading Real Estate Foundation
RREF Limited

Karen Baum

Andrew Baum & Co. Limited
The West Berkshire Brewery
Company Limited

10

Directors’ service agreements, letters of appointment and emoluments

10.1

The services of the Directors are currently provided to the Company under the following
agreements:
David Bruce
David Bruce provides consultancy services to the Company through his private investment
company, Brew Securities Limited, under a consultancy agreement dated 1 April 2013 (the
‘Agreement’). Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Company engages Brew which has
a contractual commitment to make David Bruce available to provide such services. In order
to terminate the Agreement 6 months’ notice is required to be served by both the Company
and Brew. Brew’s fee for providing the services is £25,000 per annum.
Andrew Baum
Andrew Baum provides consultancy services to the Company through his service Company,
Andrew Baum and Company Limited (‘ABC’) under a consultancy agreement dated 1 April
2013 (the ‘Agreement’). Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Company engages ABC
which has a contractual commitment to make Andrew Baum available to provide such
services. In order to terminate the Agreement 6 months’ notice is required to be served by
both the Company and ABC. ABC’s fee for providing the services is £15,000 per annum.
David Maggs
David Maggs provides consultancy services to the Company through his service Company,
Maggs and Co Limited (‘MAC’) under a consultancy agreement dated 5 December 2013 (the
‘Agreement’). Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Company engages MAC which has
a contractual commitment to make David Maggs available to provide such services. In order
to terminate the Agreement 6 months’ notice is required to be served by both the Company
and MAC such notice to be given not earlier than two years and six months from the date of
the agreement. MAC’s fee for providing the services is £35,000 per annum.
Helen Maggs
Helen Maggs provides consultancy services to the Company through her service Company,
Maggs and Co Limited (‘MAC’) under a consultancy agreement dated 5 December 2013 (the
‘Agreement’). Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Company engages MAC which has
a contractual commitment to make Helen Maggs available to provide such services. In order
to terminate the Agreement 6 months’ notice is required to be served by both the Company
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and MAC such notice to be given not earlier than two years and six months from the date of
the agreement. MAC’s fee for providing the services is £35,000 per annum.
Karen Baum
Karen Baum provides consultancy services to the Company through her service Company,
Andrew Baum and Company Limited (‘ABC’) pursuant to a consultancy agreement dated
1 December 2013 (the ‘Agreement’). Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Company
engages ABC which has a contractual commitment to make Karen Baum available to provide
such services. In order to terminate the Agreement 6 months’ notice is required to be served
by both the Company and ABC. ABC’s fee for providing the services is £15,000 per annum.
10.2

Save as disclosed in this Share Offer Document, there are no Directors’ service contracts, or
contracts in the nature of services, with the Company.

10.3

Save as set out above, there are no existing or proposed service contracts between any
Directors and the Company and save as disclosed there are no such service contracts which
have been entered into or amended within six months of the date of this Share Offer
Document.

11.

Share Option Schemes

11.1

On 28 March 2013 the Company adopted a share option scheme comprising an Enterprise
Management Incentive Scheme (‘EMI Scheme’) for the purposes of recruiting and
incentivising employees of the Company and an option agreement for David Bruce (the ‘Brew
Option Agreement’)
EMI Scheme

11.2

The rules of the EMI Scheme satisfy the requirements of Schedule 5 of the Income Tax
(Earnings & Pensions) Act 2003 (‘Schedule 5’).

11.3

The Board (or a duly constituted committee of the Board) has discretion to select employees
or Directors of the Company from time to time who satisfy the requirements of Schedule 5
and grant them options under the EMI Scheme.

11.4

Options must be notified to HMRC within 92 days of the date of grant in order to qualify as
valid EMI Scheme options under Schedule 5.

11.5

Eligibility
Options may only be granted to employees who work for at least 25 hours per week for the
Company, or if less, devote 75 per cent. of their working time to the business of the Company.

11.6

Grant of EMI options
Subject to Schedule 5, the Board, acting for and on behalf of the Company, may grant any
eligible employee an option over such number of shares at such option price and with such
conditions as they determine.

11.7

Exercise of options
The exercise period is the period during which an option may be exercised, which in any
event shall commence no later than the day before the tenth anniversary of the grant date of
the option.
An option may only be exercised if any conditions of exercise specified at the grant date have
been fulfilled to the satisfaction of the Board.
An option (and any right arising under it) may not be transferred, assigned or have any charge
or other security interest created over it and the option shall lapse if the optionholder attempts
to do any of those things. The option shall also lapse if the optionholder is declared bankrupt.
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For the avoidance of doubt a transfer to the optionholder’s personal representatives on the
death of the optionholder will not cause the option to lapse.
11.8

Termination of Employment
If an optionholder ceases to hold office or employment within the Company then all of his
options shall lapse on the date of cessation.

11.9

Variation of share capital
The number of shares over which an option is granted and the option price thereof shall be
adjusted in such manner as the Board shall determine following any capitalisation issue, rights
issue, subdivision, consolidation or reduction of share capital to the intent that (as nearly as
may be) the total option price multiplied by the number of shares that is payable in respect of
an option shall remain unchanged

11.10 Alterations to the EMI Scheme
The Board shall have the discretion to alter or add to the Scheme Rules and impose additional
conditions or requirements on the options or on the terms on which shares are acquired,
provided that no alteration or addition would have the effect of causing the options to cease
to satisfy the requirements of Schedule 5.
11.11 The following individuals hold options in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
EMI Scheme:

Name

Number of
Options

HMRC
Options
Value
£/share

Exercise
Price
£/share

Stephen Kirby

150

79.00

30.00

1. 150 at any
time after
28 March
2013.

28 March 2023

Thomas Lucas

500

79.00

30.00

1. 200 at any
time after
28 March
2013;
2. 100 at any
time after 28
March 2014;
3. 100 at any
time after 28
March 2015;
4. 100 at any
time after 28
March 2016.

28 March 2023

Griffin Maggs

150

79.00

30.00

1. 75 at any time
after 28 March
2013;
2. 25 at any time
after 28 March
2014;
3. 25 at any time
after 28 March
2015;
4. 25 at any time
after 28 March
2016.

28 March 2023
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Name

Number of
Options

HMRC
Options
Value
£/share

Exercise
Price
£/share

Thomas Meads

150

79.00

30.00

1. 75 at any time
after 28 March
2014;
2. 25 at any time
after 28 March
2015;
3. 25 at any time
after 28 March
2016;
4. 25 at any time
after 28 March
2017.

28 March 2023

Colin Palmer

100

79.00

30.00

1. 100 at any
time after
28 March
2013.

28 March 2023

James Tomlinson

250

79.00

30.00

1. 100 at any time
after 28 March
2014;
2. 50 at any time
after 28 March
2015;
3. 50 at any time
after 28 March
2016;
4. 50 at any time
after 28 March
2017.

28 March 2023

William Twomey

500

79.00

30.00

1. 200 at any
time after 28
March 2013;
2. 100 at any
time after 28
March 2014;
3. 100 at any
time after 28
March 2015;
4. 100 at any
time after 28
March 2016.

28 March 2023

Exercise
Conditions

Expiry Date

David Bruce also holds Share Options in the Company under the Brew Option Agreement
which he will be entitled to exercise in accordance with any future fundraisings which may
be undertaken by the Company.
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Brew Option Agreement
11.12 On 28 March 2013 the Company entered into the Brew Option Agreement with Brew
Securities Limited pursuant to which the Company has granted options over Ordinary Shares
to Brew on the following basis:
(i)

upon the First Hurdle (a fund raise of £1,250,000) being met, options will be granted
over 1.5 per cent. of the fully diluted issued share capital of the Company;

(ii)

upon the Second Hurdle (a fund raise of £2,000,000) being met, options will be
granted over 3 per cent. of the fully diluted issued share capital of the Company;

(iii)

upon the Third Hurdle (a fund raise of £3,000,000) being met, options will be granted
over 4.5 per cent. of the fully diluted issued share capital of the Company;

(iv)

upon the Fourth Hurdle (a fund raise of £4,000,000) being met, options will be
granted over 6.5 per cent. of the fully diluted issued share capital of the Company;
and

(v)

upon the Fifth Hurdle (a fund raise of £5,000,000) being met, options will be granted
over 7.5 per cent. of the fully diluted issued share capital of the Company.

All options are exercisable at £79 per Ordinary Share and have a HMRC option value of £79.
The Brew Option Agreement shall lapse under certain specified circumstances as set out in
clause 6 of the Brew Option Agreement.
12

Material contracts

12.1

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business,
have been entered into by the Company since 31 December 2011, being the date 24 months
prior to the date of this Share Offer Document which are, or may be material:
(a)

An agreement dated 18 October 2013 between the Company and Grant Thornton
under which Grant Thornton will act as the Company’s financial adviser for the
purposes of FSMA. This agreement contains indemnities given by the Company to Grant
Thornton.

(b)

An agreement dated 8 November 2013 between the Company and Shoosmiths LLP
under which Shoosmiths LLP will act as the Company’s legal adviser for the purposes
of the Offer.

(c)

An agreement dated 19 December 2013 between the Company and Asset Match
Limited under which Asset Match Limited will provide the Company with a Share
Trading Facility which will become active on or around 31 January 2015 being the first
anniversary of the closing of the Offer.

(d)

The EMI Scheme.

(e)

The Brew Option Agreement.

13

Litigation

13.1

The Company is not nor has been engaged in, nor has pending or threatened by it or against
it, any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings, which have had, are having or may
have a significant effect on the financial position of the Company.
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14

Significant Change

14.1

Save as otherwise disclosed in this Share Offer Document, there has been no material or
significant change in the financial or trading position of the Company since 30 September
2013, being the date of the last audited interim accounts of the Company.

15

UK Taxation

15.1

Introduction
Information in this section is based on the Directors’ understanding of current UK tax law and
HM Revenue & Customs practice as at the date of this Share Offer Document, both of which
are subject to change at any time. It should be regarded as a summary of the tax treatment
likely to be afforded UK resident Potential New Shareholders holding their Ordinary Shares
in the Company as investments. It does not constitute legal or tax advice and Potential New
Shareholders are, therefore, strongly recommended to consult a professional adviser
regarding their own tax position and the consequences of making an investment in the
Company.

15.2

Tax residence of the Company
The Company is considered to be resident for tax purposes in the UK. Accordingly, the
information provided in this section reflects the taxation treatment appropriate to an
investment in a UK tax resident company.

15.3

Taxation of dividends
The taxation of dividends paid by the Company and received by a New Shareholder resident
for tax purposes in the UK is summarised below.
Individuals
A UK resident individual Shareholder in receipt of dividends is treated as receiving income of
an amount equal to the sum of the dividend and its associated tax credit. The tax credit
currently equates to 10 per cent. of the gross dividend, being the combined amount of the
dividend and the tax credit (the tax credit therefore representing one-ninth of the net
dividend). The gross dividend is subject to income tax at the top slice of the individual’s
income and is taxed at the individual’s marginal rate of income tax. The tax credit is available
to set against the resulting liability (if any) to income tax. An individual liable to income tax
at the basic rate will be liable to tax on the gross dividend at a rate of 10 per cent. (“the
dividend ordinary rate” which is a special rate of tax set for basic rate taxpayers in receipt of
dividend income). Accordingly, the tax credit will satisfy the income tax liability of such an
individual. An individual liable to income tax at the higher rate will pay tax on the gross
dividend at a rate of 32.5 per cent. (“the dividend upper rate” which is a special rate of tax
set for higher rate taxpayers in receipt of dividend income). After taking into account the tax
credit of 10 per cent. a higher rate taxpayer will be liable to additional income tax of 22.5 per
cent. of the gross dividend, which equates to 25 per cent. of the actual or net dividend.
An individual Shareholder liable to income tax at the additional rate will be subject to income
tax on the gross dividend at the rate of 37.5 per cent. but will be able to set the tax credit off
against part of this liability. The effect of that set off of the tax credit will be that such a
Shareholder will have to account for additional tax equal to approximately 30.6 per cent. of
the net cash dividend received.
Trustees
UK resident trustees of a discretionary trust in receipt of dividends are liable to income tax at
a rate of 37.5 per cent. (“the dividend trust rate”) of the gross dividend. After giving effect to
the tax credit of 10 per cent. the trustees will be liable to additional income tax of 27.5 per
cent. of the gross dividend, which equates to 30.06 per cent. of the actual or net dividend.
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Companies
Although a UK resident corporate Shareholder is potentially liable to corporation tax on its
dividend income, it is anticipated that the general exemption for dividends will be available
to exempt from corporation tax corporate Shareholders in receipt of dividends from the
Company.
15.4

Withholding tax and tax credit in UK
The Company is not required to withhold tax when paying a dividend. Liability to tax on
dividends will depend upon the individual circumstances of a Shareholder. Other UK resident
Shareholders who are not liable to UK tax on dividends, including pension funds and
charities, are not entitled to claim repayment of the tax credit. Shareholders who are resident
outside the UK for tax purposes will not generally be able to claim repayment of any part of
the tax credit attaching to dividends received from the Company, although this will depend
on the existence and terms of any double taxation convention between the UK and the
country in which such Shareholder is resident. A Shareholder resident outside the UK may
also be subject to taxation on dividend income under local law. A Shareholder who is resident
outside the UK for tax purposes should consult his own tax adviser concerning his tax position
on dividends received from the Company.

15.5

Taxation of Chargeable Gains
A sale or other disposal of the Ordinary Shares may, subject to any available reliefs and
exemptions, give rise to a chargeable gain (or allowable loss) for the purposes of UK taxation
of chargeable gains.
Individuals and Trustees
Chargeable gains realised on a disposal of Ordinary Shares by an individual or trustee resident
and ordinarily resident in the UK will be subject to capital gains tax which is charged at a rate
of 28 percent. for those individuals whose total income and gains exceed the income tax
basic rate limit, and at a rate of 18 per cent. where total income and gains fall below the basic
rate limit. A flat rate of 28 per cent. applies for trustees and personal representatives. An
annual tax free allowance known as the ‘Annual Exempt Amount’, currently at £10,900, is
available to UK tax resident individuals. Trustees and personal representatives may be entitled
to the annual exempt allowance in certain circumstances. An individual Shareholder who
disposes of Ordinary Shares while only temporarily not resident in the UK for tax purposes,
may, under anti-avoidance legislation, still be liable to UK tax on his or her return to the UK.
A period of non-residence of less than 5 whole tax years prior to the year in which the
Shareholder returns to the UK will be treated as a temporary period for these purposes. Shares
of the same class acquired by the same person and in the same capacity are ‘pooled’ and
treated as a single asset growing or diminishing as shares of the same class are acquired or
disposed. This is subject to specific rules dealing with same day purchases or acquisitions
within 30 days of a disposal. Accordingly on a part disposal of the relevant shareholding the
gain (or loss) will be computed by reference to that proportionate part of the aggregate cost
of the holding attributable to the shares disposed. With effect from 6 April 2008 indexation
relief is not available to individuals and trustees in computing any gain subject to capital gains
tax.
Companies
UK resident corporate Shareholders are subject to corporation tax on their chargeable gains.
Gains realised by such companies, as reduced by available indexation relief, are subject to
corporation tax at the Company’s relevant rate. The full rate of corporation tax is currently 23
per cent. Indexation relief is deductible in computing any gain arising on a disposal of, or out
of, the holding and is computed by reference to the movement in the Retail Price Index over
the period of ownership applied to the costs of the holding, or that part of the holding,

47

17280 West Berkshire Brewery Info Memo:Layout 1

20/12/2013

17:09

Page 48

disposed. As for individuals and trustees, shares of the same class held by a corporate
Shareholder are ‘pooled’.
Non Residents
Shareholders who are not resident or ordinarily resident in the UK and who are not affected
by the rules relating to temporary non residence will, save in limited circumstances, not be
liable to UK taxation on chargeable gains realised on the disposal of their Ordinary Shares.
Such Shareholders may be subject to foreign taxation on any gain realised under the local law
of their country of residence and should consult their own tax adviser concerning their tax
liabilities on such gains.
15.6

Inheritance Tax
The Ordinary Shares are considered, potentially, to qualify for business property relief for the
purposes of inheritance tax. Shares in an unquoted company (other than an investment
company or one which carries on a business consisting wholly or mainly of dealing in
securities, stocks, shares, land and buildings) potentially attract full relief (as business
property) from inheritance tax where the shares have been held for 2 years prior to the
chargeable transfer for inheritance tax purposes.

15.7

Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax (‘SDRT’)
Transfers of Ordinary Shares may give rise to liabilities to stamp duty or SDRT. The paragraphs
below summarise the current position and are intended as a general guide only to stamp duty
and SDRT. Special rules apply to agreements made by brokers, dealers and market makers in
the ordinary course of their business and to certain categories of person (such as depositaries
and clearance services) who may be liable to stamp duty or SDRT at a higher rate. No liability
to stamp duty or SDRT will generally arise on the allotment and issue of new Ordinary Shares
by the Company.
Transfers
An instrument (generally a stock transfer form) transferring Ordinary Shares will be liable to
ad valorem stamp duty broadly at a rate of 0.5 per cent. of the actual consideration paid.
Stamp duty is normally paid by the purchaser. An unconditional agreement to transfer such
shares, if not completed by a duly stamped stock transfer form, within 2 months of the day on
which the agreement is made or becomes unconditional, will be subject to SDRT (payable by
the purchaser and generally at a rate of 0.5 per cent. of the consideration paid). If within 6
years of the date of the agreement an instrument of transfer is executed pursuant to the
agreement and stamp duty is paid on the instrument any liability to SDRT will be cancelled
or repaid.

16

General

16.1

Save as disclosed there are no patents or other intellectual property rights, licences or
particular contracts which are of fundamental importance to the Company’s business. The
business of the Company is the brewing and sale of beer.

16.2

Save as set out in Part 2 of this Share Offer Document, the Directors are not aware of any
trends, uncertainties, demands, commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a
material effect on the Company’s prospects in the period commencing on the date of this
Share Offer Document.

16.3

The Ordinary Shares are in registered form.

16.4

There are no investments in progress by the Company which are significant to the Company.

16.5

The Directors are not aware of any environmental issues that may affect the Company’s
utilisation of its tangible fixed assets.
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16.6

Within this Share Offer Document, where information has been sourced from a third party,
the Company confirms that this information has been accurately reproduced and, so far as the
Company is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that party, no facts
have been omitted which would render the produced information inaccurate or misleading.

16.7

The Company does not have any interest in any real property, nor any liability in relation to
any real property. The Company operates from premises occupied under tenancy agreements.

16.8

Save as disclosed in this Share Offer Document, the Directors are not aware of any
exceptional factors which have influenced the Company’s recent activities.

16.9

Grant Thornton, acting as financial adviser to the Company, has given and has not withdrawn
its written consent to the issue of this Share Offer Document with the inclusion in it of
references to its name in the form and context in which it appears.

16.10 The Offer Price represents a premium of £124.90 on the nominal value (£0.10) of an Ordinary
Share.
17

Share Offer Documents available for inspection

Copies of the following Share Offer Documents will be available for inspection at the offices of
Shoosmiths LLP, Apex Plaza, Forbury Road, Reading, Berkshire RG1 1SH until the closing of
the Offer:
(a)

the memorandum of association and the Articles of the Company; and

(b)

the report and accounts of the Company for the three years ended 31 March 2013 and
the six months ended 30 September 2013.

Dated 30 December 2013
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APPENDIX: AUDITED ACCOUNTS OF THE COMPANY
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Directors’ Report for the Period from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013
The directors present their report and the financial statements for the period from 1 April 2013 to 30
September 2013.
Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to:
•

select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

•

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

•

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Directors of the company
The directors who held office during the period were as follows:
Mrs K N C Baum
Mr D Maggs
Mrs H Maggs
Mr A D M Bruce
Dr A E Baum
Principal activity
The principal activity of the company is that of a brewery and the operation of a public house.
Disclosure of information to the auditors
Each director who held office at the date of approval of these financial statements confirms, so far as
they are aware, that:
•

there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware; and

•

we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken as directors in order to make ourselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware
of that information.
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Small company provisions
This report has been prepared in accordance with the small companies regime under the Companies
Act 2006.
Approved by the Board on 22 November 2013 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr D Maggs
Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
The West Berkshire Brewery Company Ltd
We have audited the financial statements of The West Berkshire Brewery Company Ltd for the period
from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013, set out on pages 5 to 15. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the Financial Reporting Standard for
Smaller Entities (Effective April 2008) (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
applicable to Smaller Entities). This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities (set out on page 2), the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical
Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the APB’s web-site at
www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/private.cfm.
Opinion on the financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 30 September 2013 and of
its profit for the period then ended;

•

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice applicable to smaller entities; and

•

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial period for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

•

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

•

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

•

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
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the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements and the Directors’ Report in
accordance with the small companies regime.

Ross Brooke Limited, Statutory Auditors
Michael Brooke FCA, Senior Statutory Auditor
For and on behalf of Ross Brooke Limited

2 Old Bath Road
Newbury
Berkshire
RG14 1QL

Date: 25 November 2013
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Profit and Loss Account for the Period from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013
1 April
2013 to
30 September
£
Note
2013

Year ended
31 March
£
2013

Turnover
Cost of sales

761,688
(474,521)

1,210,987
(774,291)

Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Other operating income

287,167
(218,861)
1,584

436,696
(447,079)
3,167

69,890
126
(608)

(7,216)
258
(909)

5

69,408
(13,970)

(7,867)
(13,208)

13

55,438

(21,075)

Operating profit/(loss)
Other interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges

3

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
Profit/(loss) for the financial period

The notes on pages 61 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet at 30 September 2013
Registration number: 03667842

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Note

30 September
£
2013

31 March
£
2013

6

410,966

428,968

7

116,240
173,821
164,652

96,642
116,702
125,071

454,713
(223,794)

338,415
(173,301)

230,919

165,114

641,885
(47,421)
(61,667)

594,082
(53,279)
(63,444)

532,797

477,359

1,900
22,683
508,214

1,900
22,683
452,776

532,797

477,359

8

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities

9
10

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account

11
13
13

Shareholders’ funds

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions in Part 15
of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies and in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).
Approved by the Board on 22 November 2013 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr D Maggs
Director

Mr A D M Bruce
Director

The notes on pages 61 to 66 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Reconciliation of operating profit/loss to net cash flow from operating activities
1 April
2013 to
30 September
2013
£

Year ended
31 March
2013
£

Operating profit/(loss)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges
Increase in stocks
Increase in debtors
Increase in creditors
Receipt/release of government grants

69,890
24,326
(19,598)
(57,119)
34,746
(1,583)

(7,216)
54,707
(3,411)
(11,468)
14,151
(3,167)

Net cash inflow from operating activities

50,662

43,596
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Cash Flow Statement
1 April
2013 to
30 September
2013
£

Year ended
31 March
2013
£

50,662

43,596

126
(608)

258
(909)

(482)

(651)

—

(9,075)

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Receipts of government grants

(6,324)
—

(108,300)
44,333

Equity dividends paid

(6,324)
—

(63,967)
(17,867)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before management of
liquid resources and financing

43,856

(47,964)

Financing
Repayment of capital element of finance leases and HP contracts

(4,275)

(4,987)

Increase/(decrease) in cash

39,581

(52,951)

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received
HP and finance lease interest

Taxation paid
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Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
1 April
2013 to
30 September
2013
£

Year ended
31 March
2013
£

Increase/(decrease) in cash
Cash outflow from repayment of capital element of
finance leases and hire purchase contracts

39,581

(52,951)

4,275

4,987

Change in net debt resulting from cash flows

43,856

(47,964)

Movement in net debt
Net funds at start of period

43,856
104,408

(47,964)
152,372

Net funds at end of period

148,264

104,408
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013
1

Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set
out below and have remained unchanged from the previous period, and also have been
consistently applied within the same accounts.
Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).
The accounts do not include a cash flow statement because the company, as a small reporting
entity, is exempt from the requirements to prepare such a statement.
Turnover
Turnover represents amounts chargeable, net of value added tax, in respect of the sale of beer
and other goods to customers.
Government grants
Government grants in respect of capital expenditure are credited to a deferred income account
and are released to profit over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual
instalments.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on tangible fixed assets so as to write off the cost or valuation, less
any estimated residual value, over their expected useful economic life as follows:
Asset class

Depreciation method and rate

Improvements to property
Computer equipment
Fixtures and fittings
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery
New brewery plant and equipment

Over term of lease
25% on cost
20% on cost
25% on cost
15% – 20% on cost
Over term of lease

Stock
Stock represents the value of the ingredients and packaging that remained unused at the
balance sheet date together with the stock of finished, bottled or cask beer unsold at the year
end.
Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after due regard for obsolete and
slow moving stocks. Net realisable value is based on selling price less anticipated costs to
completion and selling costs.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised, without discounting, in respect of all timing differences between
the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes, which have arisen but not
reversed by the balance sheet date, except as required by the FRSSE.
Deferred tax is measured at the rates that are expected to apply in the periods when the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on the tax rates and law enacted at the balance sheet
date.
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Hire purchase and leasing
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged in the profit and loss account on a straight
line basis over the lease term.
Assets held under finance leases, which are leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset have passed to the company, are capitalised in the balance sheet as
tangible fixed assets and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives. The capital elements of future obligations under the leases are included as liabilities in
the balance sheet. The interest element of the rental obligation is charged to the profit and loss
account over the period of the lease and represents a constant proportion of the balance of
capital repayments outstanding. Assets held under hire purchase agreements are capitalised as
tangible fixed assets and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives. The capital element of future finance payments is included within creditors. Finance
charges are allocated to accounting periods over the length of the contract and represent a
constant proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding.
Financial instruments
Financial instruments are classified and accounted for, according to the substance of the
contractual arrangement, as financial assets, financial liabilities or equity instruments. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Where shares are issued, any component that creates a
financial liability of the company is presented as a liability in the balance sheet. The
corresponding dividends relating to the liability component are charged as interest expense in
the profit and loss account.
Pensions
The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions are recognised
in the profit and loss account in the period in which they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the scheme.
2

Other income

Other operating income
3

1 April 2013 to
30 September
2013
£

Year ended
31 March
2013
£

1,584

3,167

1 April 2013 to
30 September
2013
£

Year ended
31 March
2013
£

2,000
24,326
(1,584)

2,500
54,707
(3,167)

Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit/(loss) is stated after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration – The audit of the
company’s annual accounts
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Government grants receivable
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Directors’ remuneration
The directors’ remuneration for the period was as follows:

Remuneration
Company contributions paid to money purchase schemes
5

1 April 2013 to
30 September
2013
£

Year ended
31 March
2013
£

61,145
1,256

82,250
1,429

1 April 2013 to
30 September
2013
£

Year ended
31 March
2013
£

15,747

—

(1,777)

13,208

13,970

13,208

Taxation
Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities

Current tax
Corporation tax charge
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences
Total tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
6

Tangible fixed assets
Other Plant and
Fixtures
tangibles machinery and fittings
£
£
£

Motor
Office
vehicles equipment
£
£

Other
tangibles
£

Total
£

222,587
—

81,373
—

16,203
922

59,525
—

12,942
1,402

170,384
4,000

563,014
6,324

At 30 September 2013 222,587

81,373

17,125

59,525

14,344

174,384

569,338

Depreciation
At 1 April 2013
Charge for the period

26,842
7,529

40,312
6,810

8,812
1,113

36,855
3,960

7,841
1,568

13,384
3,346

134,046
24,326

At 30 September 2013

34,371

47,122

9,925

40,815

9,409

16,730

158,372

Net book value
At 30 September 2013 188,216

34,251

7,200

18,710

4,935

157,654

410,966

At 31 March 2013

41,061

7,391

22,670

5,101

157,000

428,968

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2013
Additions

195,745

Leased assets
Included within the net book value of tangible fixed assets is £18,437 (2013 – £22,125) in
respect of assets held under finance leases and similar hire purchase contracts.
Depreciation for the period on these assets was £3,688 (2013 – £7,375).
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Debtors

Trade debtors
Other debtors

8

31 March
2013
£

144,803
29,018

84,970
31,732

173,821

116,702

30 September
2013
£

31 March
2013
£

88,313
8,550
15,747
71,052
40,132

83,453
8,550
—
46,255
35,043

223,794

173,301

30 September
2013
£

31 March
2013
£

7,838
39,583

12,113
41,166

47,421

53,279

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts
Corporation tax
Other taxes and social security
Other creditors

9

30 September
2013
£

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts
Other creditors

Included in the creditors are the following amounts due after more than five years:
30 September
2013
£

31 March
2013
£

39,583

41,166

Deferred tax
£

Total
£

At 1 April 2013
Credited to the profit and loss account

63,444
(1,777)

63,444
(1,777)

At 30 September 2013

61,667

61,667

After more than five years not by instalments
10

Provisions

64

17280 West Berkshire Brewery Info Memo:Layout 1

20/12/2013

17:09

Page 65

Analysis of deferred tax

Difference between accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and capital allowances
11

Ordinary of £0.10 each

19,000

1,900

14

63,481

63,444

31 March 2013
No.

£

19,000

1,900

30 September
2013
£

31 March
2013
£

—

17,867

Share
premium
account
£

Profit and
loss account
£

Total
£

At 1 April 2013
Profit for the period

22,683
—

452,776
55,438

475,459
55,438

At 30 September 2013

22,683

508,214

530,897

Dividends

Dividends paid
Current period interim dividend paid
13

31 March
2013
£

Share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid shares
30 September 2013
No.
£

12

30 September
2013
£

Reserves

Pension schemes
Defined contribution pension scheme
The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the
period represents contributions payable by the company to the scheme and amounted to
£1,256 (2013 – £1,429).
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Commitments
Operating lease commitments
As at 30 September 2013 the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:
Operating leases which expire:

Within one year
Over five years

16

30 September
2013
£

31 March
2013
£

5,184
54,604

5,184
53,729

59,788

58,913

Related party transactions
Other related party transactions
During the period the company made the following related party transactions:
The Country Food and Dining Company Limited (Mr A D M Bruce is a director of both
companies).
During the period The West Berkshire Brewery Company Ltd made sales totalling £2,352 to The
Country Food and Dining Company Limited. At the balance sheet date the amount due from
The Country Food and Dining Company Limited was £407 (2013 – £442).
Brew Securities Limited (Mr A D M Bruce is a director of both companies).
During the period Brew Securities Limited provided consultancy services to The West Berkshire
Brewery Company Ltd totalling £12,500. At the balance sheet date the amount due to Brew
Securities Limited was £7,500 (2013 – £nil).
Andrew Baum and Company Limited (Dr A E Baum and Mrs K N C Baum are directors of both
companies).
During the period Andrew Baum and Company Limited charged director’s fees to The West
Berkshire Brewery Company Ltd totalling £7,500. At the balance sheet date the amount due to
Andrew Baum and Company Limited was £9,000 (2013 – £nil).
Dividends
During the period no dividends (2013: £17,867) were paid to the directors Mr D Maggs, Mrs H
Maggs, Dr A E Baum and Mrs K N C Baum.

17

Control
The company is controlled by Mr D Maggs and Mrs H Maggs, both directors, due to their
controlling interest of the company.
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Profit and Loss Account for the Period from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013
£
Cost Centre Summary
Brewery

£
Public House

Turnover
Cost of sales

685,323
(397,528)

76,365
(76,993)

Gross profit/(loss)
Administrative expenses
Other operating income

287,795
(199,045)
1,584

(628)
(19,816)
—

Operating profit/(loss)
Other interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges

90,334
126
(608)

(20,444)
—
—

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities

89,852
(13,970)

(20,444)
—

Profit/(loss) for the financial period

75,882

(20,444)

Profit and Loss Account for the Period from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013
1 April 2013 to
30 September 2013
£
£

Year ended
31 March 2013
£
£

Turnover
Cost of sales

761,688
(474,521)

1,210,987
(774,291)

Gross profit

287,167

436,696

Gross profit (%)

37.70%

36.06%

Administrative expenses
Employment costs
Establishment costs
General administrative expenses
Finance charges
Depreciation costs

105,636
47,351
37,859
3,689
24,326

Other operating income
Other interest receivable and similar
income (analysed below)
Interest payable and similar charges
(analysed below)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation

67

151,761
100,286
133,350
6,975
54,707
(218,861)
1,584

(447,079)
3,167

126

258

(608)

(909)

69,408

(7,867)
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Detailed Profit and Loss Account for the Period from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013
30 September
31 March
2013
2013
£
£
Turnover
Sales, UK
761,688
1,210,987

Cost of sales
Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stock
Wages and salaries
Staff NIC (Employers)
Excise duty
Electricity and water

Employment costs
Wages and salaries
Staff NIC (Employers)
Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ NIC (Employers)
Directors’ pensions
Staff training
Recruitment expenses

68

761,688

1,210,987

96,642
210,665
(116,240)
97,880
8,324
156,907
20,343

93,231
304,872
(96,642)
176,845
16,267
251,691
28,027

474,521

774,291

35,748
2,925
61,145
4,082
1,256
480
—

51,268
5,371
82,250
8,250
1,429
2,236
957

105,636

151,761
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Detailed Profit and Loss Account for the Period from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013
30 September
31 March
2013
2013
£
£
Establishment costs
Rent and service charges
17,646
34,694
Rising Sun rent
11,092
21,590
Rates and water
7,889
14,583
Insurance
4,271
9,699
Repairs and renewals
6,453
19,720

General administrative expenses
Telephone
General office
Bookkeeping
Computer expenses
Rising Sun refurbishment materials & labour
Trade subscriptions
Charitable donations
Sundry expenses
Accountancy fees
Auditor’s remuneration – The audit of the company’s annual accounts
Legal and professional fees
Motor and travel
Advertising
Marketing consultancy fees
Staff entertaining (allowable for tax)
Customer entertaining (disallowable for tax)
Bad debts written off

69

47,351

100,286

1,542
1,107
2,458
3,040
296
—
85
3,313
505
2,000
2,105
12,733
7,850
543
—
—
282

3,372
1,984
8,767
3,286
24,595
1,807
—
8,879
347
2,500
10,866
26,734
11,674
27,280
844
29
386

37,859

133,350
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Detailed Profit and Loss Account for the Period from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013
30 September
31 March
2013
2013
£
£
Finance charges
Bank charges and interest
3,651
6,631
Credit card charges
38
344

Depreciation costs
Depreciation of plant and machinery
Depreciation of fixtures and fittings
Depreciation of motor vehicles
Depreciation of computer equipment (owned)
Depreciation of improvements to property (owned)
Depreciation of new brewery plant and equipment

Other operating income
Government grants receivable

Other interest receivable and similar income
Bank interest receivable

Interest payable and similar charges
Hire purchase interest
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3,689

6,975

6,810
1,113
3,960
1,568
7,529
3,346

15,540
3,240
11,317
2,860
15,058
6,692

24,326

54,707

1,584

3,167

1,584

3,167

126

258

126

258

608

909

608

909
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Cash Flow Statement for the Period from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013
Reconciliation of operating profit/loss to net cash flow from operating activities
1 April
2013 to
30 September
2013
£

Year ended
31 March
2013
£

Operating profit/(loss)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges
Increase in stocks
Increase in debtors
Increase in creditors
Receipt/release of government grants

69,890
24,326
(19,598)
(57,119)
34,746
(1,583)

(7,216)
54,707
(3,411)
(11,468)
14,151
(3,167)

Net cash inflow from operating activities

50,662

43,596

Cash Flow Statement for the Period from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013
1 April
2013 to
30 September
2013
£

Year ended
31 March
2013
£

Net cash inflow from operating activities

50,662

43,596

126
(608)

258
(909)

(482)

(651)

—

(9,075)

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Receipts of government grants

(6,324)
—

(108,300)
44,333

Equity dividends paid

(6,324)
—

(63,967)
(17,867)

43,856

(47,964)

(4,275)

(4,987)

39,581

(52,951)

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received
HP and finance lease interest

Taxation paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before management of liquid
resources and financing
Financing
Repayment of capital element of finance leases and HP contracts
Increase/(decrease) in cash
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Cash Flow Statement for the Period from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
1 April
2013 to
30 September
2013
£

Year ended
31 March
2013
£

Increase/(decrease) in cash
Cash outflow from repayment of capital element of
finance leases and hire purchase contracts

39,581

(52,951)

4,275

4,987

Change in net debt resulting from cash flows

43,856

(47,964)

Movement in net debt
Net funds at start of period

43,856
104,408

(47,964)
152,372

Net funds at end of period

148,264

104,408
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The West Berkshire Brewery Company Ltd
Directors’ Report and Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 March 2013
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Directors’ Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2013
The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013.
Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to:
•

select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

•

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

•

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Directors of the company
The directors who held office during the year were as follows:
Mrs K N C Baum
Mr D Maggs
Mrs H Maggs
Mr A D M Bruce (appointed 28 March 2013)
Dr A E Baum
Principal activity
The principal activity of the company is that of brewery and the operation of a public house.
Disclosure of information to the auditors
Each director who held office at the date of approval of these financial statements confirms, so far as
they are aware, that:
•

there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware; and

•

we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken as directors in order to make ourselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware
of that information.
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Small company provisions
This report has been prepared in accordance with the small companies regime under the Companies
Act 2006.
Approved by the Board on 22 November 2013 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr D Maggs
Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
The West Berkshire Brewery Company Ltd
We have audited the financial statements of The West Berkshire Brewery Company Ltd for the year
ended 31 March 2013, set out on pages 5 to 15. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller
Entities (Effective April 2008) (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice applicable
to Smaller Entities).
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities (set out on page 2), the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical
Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the APB’s web-site at
www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/private.cfm.
Basis for qualified opinion on financial statements
With respect to stock having a carrying amount of £96,642 the audit evidence available to us was
limited because we did not observe the counting of the physical stock as at 31 March 2013, since
that date was prior to our appointment as auditor of the company. Due to this, we were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the stock quantities by using other audit
procedures.
Qualified opinion on the financial statements
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the financial statements:
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of its
loss for the year then ended;

•

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice applicable to smaller entities; and

•

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

•

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

•

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

•

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

•

the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements and the Directors’ Report in
accordance with the small companies regime.

Ross Brooke Limited, Statutory Auditors
Michael Brooke FCA, Senior Statutory Auditor
For and on behalf of Ross Brooke Limited

2 Old Bath Road
Newbury
Berkshire
RG14 1QL

Date: 25 November 2013
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Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2013
£
2013

£
2012

1,210,987

1,154,290

(774,291)
436,696
(447,079)
3,167

(693,650)
460,640
(293,838)
—

(7,216)
258
(909)

166,802
294
—

5

(7,867)
(13,208)

167,096
(56,794)

13

(21,075)

110,302

Note

Turnover
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Other operating income
Operating (loss)/profit
Other interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges

3

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities
(Loss)/profit for the financial year

The notes on pages 80 to 85 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet at 31 March 2013
Registration number: 03667842

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Note

£
2013

£
2012

6

428,968

375,375

7

96,642
116,702
125,071

93,231
105,234
152,372

338,415
(173,301)

350,837
(159,675)

165,114

191,162

594,082
(53,279)
(63,444)

566,537
—
(50,236)

477,359

516,301

1,900
22,683
452,776

1,900
22,683
491,718

477,359

516,301

8

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities

9
10

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account

11
13
13

Shareholders’ funds

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions in Part 15
of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies and in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).
These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 22 November
2013 and signed on its behalf by:
Mr D Maggs
Director
Mr A D M Bruce
Director
The notes on pages 80 to 85 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2013
1

Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set
out below and have remained unchanged from the previous period, and also have been
consistently applied within the same accounts.
Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).
The accounts do not include a cash flow statement because the company, as a small reporting
entity, is exempt from the requirements to prepare such a statement.
Turnover
Turnover represents amounts chargeable, net of value added tax, in respect of the sale of beer
and other goods to customers.
Government grants
Government grants in respect of capital expenditure are credited to a deferred income account
and are released to profit over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual
instalments.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on tangible fixed assets so as to write off the cost or valuation, less
any estimated residual value, over their expected useful economic life as follows:
Asset class

Depreciation method and rate

Long leasehold
Improvements to property
Computer equipment
Fixtures and fittings
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery
New brewery plant and equipment

Over term of lease
Over term of lease
25% on cost
20% on cost
25% on cost
15% – 20% on cost
Over term of lease

Stock
Stock represents the value of the ingredients and packaging that remained unused at the
balance sheet date together with the stock of finished, bottled or cask beer unsold at the year
end.
Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after due regard for obsolete and
slow moving stocks. Net realisable value is based on selling price less anticipated costs to
completion and selling costs.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised, without discounting, in respect of all timing differences between
the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes, which have arisen but not
reversed by the balance sheet date, except as required by the FRSSE.
Deferred tax is measured at the rates that are expected to apply in the periods when the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on the tax rates and law enacted at the balance sheet
date.
80
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Hire purchase and leasing
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged in the profit and loss account on a straight
line basis over the lease term.
Assets held under finance leases, which are leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset have passed to the company, are capitalised in the balance sheet as
tangible fixed assets and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives. The capital elements of future obligations under the leases are included as liabilities in
the balance sheet. The interest element of the rental obligation is charged to the profit and loss
account over the period of the lease and represents a constant proportion of the balance of
capital repayments outstanding. Assets held under hire purchase agreements are capitalised as
tangible fixed assets and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives. The capital element of future finance payments is included within creditors. Finance
charges are allocated to accounting periods over the length of the contract and represent a
constant proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding.
Financial instruments
Financial instruments are classified and accounted for, according to the substance of the
contractual arrangement, as financial assets, financial liabilities or equity instruments. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Where shares are issued, any component that creates a
financial liability of the company is presented as a liability in the balance sheet. The
corresponding dividends relating to the liability component are charged as interest expense in
the profit and loss account.
Pensions
The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions are recognised
in the profit and loss account in the period in which they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the scheme.
2

Other income

Other operating income
3

2013
£

2012
£

3,167

—

2013
£

2012
£

2,500
—
54,707
(3,167)

—
(67,269)
82,781
—

Operating (loss)/profit
Operating (loss)/profit is stated after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration – The audit of the company’s annual accounts
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Government grants receivable

81

17280 West Berkshire Brewery Info Memo:Layout 1

4

20/12/2013

17:09

Page 82

Directors’ remuneration
The directors’ remuneration for the year was as follows:

Remuneration
Company contributions paid to money purchase schemes
5

2013
£

2012
£

82,250
1,429

50,896
3,749

2013
£

2012
£

Taxation
Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities

6

Current tax
Corporation tax charge
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences

—

9,075

13,208

47,719

Total tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities

13,208

56,794

Tangible fixed assets
Long
leasehold
£

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2012
Additions
Disposals
Reclassification/transfer

Improvements to Plant and
property machinery
£
£

Fixtures
and
fittings
£

New
Brewery
Motor Computer Plant and
vehicles equipment equipment
£
£
£

Total
£

52,088
—
(52,088)
—

176,764
45,823
—
—

337,304
22,875
(108,422)
(170,384)

9,580
6,623
—
—

30,025
29,500
—
—

11,558
3,479
(2,095)
—

—
—
—
170,384

617,319
108,300
(162,605)
—

—

222,587

81,373

16,203

59,525

12,942

170,384

563,014

52,088
—
(52,088)
—

11,784
15,058
—
—

139,886
15,540
(108,422)
(6,692)

5,572
3,240
—
—

25,538
11,317
—
—

7,076
2,860
(2,095)
—

—
6,692
—
6,692

241,944
54,707
(162,605)
—

At 31 March 2013

—

26,842

40,312

8,812

36,855

7,841

13,384

134,046

Net book value
At 31 March 2013

—

195,745

41,061

7,391

22,670

5,101

157,000

428,968

At 31 March 2012

—

164,980

197,418

4,008

4,487

4,482

—

375,375

At 31 March 2013
Depreciation
At 1 April 2012
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Reclassification/transfer

Leased assets
Included within the net book value of tangible fixed assets is £22,125 (2012 – £nil) in respect
of assets held under finance leases and similar hire purchase contracts.
Depreciation for the year on these assets was £7,375 (2012 – £nil).
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Debtors

Trade debtors
Other debtors

8

2012
£

84,970
31,732

71,335
33,899

116,702

105,234

2013
£

2012
£

83,453
8,550
—
46,255
35,043

62,837
—
9,075
36,408
51,355

173,301

159,675

2013
£

2012
£

12,113
41,166

—
—

53,279

—

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts
Corporation tax
Other taxes and social security
Other creditors

9

2013
£

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts
Other creditors

Included in the creditors are the following amounts due after more than five years:
2013
£

2012
£

41,166

—

Deferred tax
£

Total
£

At 1 April 2012
Charged to the profit and loss account

50,236
13,208

50,236
13,208

At 31 March 2013

63,444

63,444

2013
£

2012
£

63,444

50,236

After more than five years not by instalments
10

Provisions

Analysis of deferred tax

Difference between accumulated depreciation and amortisation
and capital allowances
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Share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid shares
2013
£

No.

£

19,000

1,900

19,000

1,900

2013
£

2012
£

17,867

17,867

Share
premium
account
£

Profit
and loss
account
£

Total
£

At 1 April 2012
Loss for the year
Dividends

22,683
—
—

491,718
(21,075)
(17,867)

514,401
(21,075)
(17,867)

At 31 March 2013

22,683

452,776

475,459

Ordinary of £0.10 each
12

2012

No.

Dividends

Dividends paid
Current year interim dividend paid
13

14

Reserves

Pension schemes
Defined contribution pension scheme
The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the
year represents contributions payable by the company to the scheme and amounted to £1,429
(2012 – £3,749).

15

Commitments
Operating lease commitments
As at 31 March 2013 the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:
Operating leases which expire:

Within one year
Within two and five years
Over five years

84

2013
£

2012
£

5,184
—
53,729

1,406
1,440
52,458

58,913

55,304
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Related party transactions
Other related party transactions
During the year the company made the following related party transactions:
The Country Food and Dining Company Limited (Mr A D M Bruce is a director of both
companies).
During the year The West Berkshire Brewery Company Ltd made sales totalling £4,354 to The
Country Food and Dining Company Limited. At the balance sheet date the amount due from
The Country Food and Dining Company Limited was £442 (2012 – £239).
Dividends
During the period dividends totalling £17,867 (2012: £17,867) were paid to the directors
Mr D Maggs, Mrs H Maggs, Dr A E Baum and Mrs K N C Baum.

17

Control
The company is controlled by Mr D Maggs and Mrs H Maggs, both directors, due to their
control of 75% of the issued share capital of the company.
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Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2013
£
Brewery

£
Public House

1,085,882
(639,187)

125,105
(135,104)

446,695
(386,620)
3,167

(9,999)
(60,459)
—

Operating profit/(loss)
Other interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges

63,242
258
(909)

(70,458)
—
—

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities

62,591
(13,208)

(70,458)
—

Profit/(loss) for the financial year

49,383

(70,458)

Cost Centre Summary

Turnover
Cost of sales
Gross profit/(loss)
Administrative expenses
Other operating income

Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2013
2013
£

2012
£

£

£

Turnover
Cost of sales

1,210,987
(774,291)

1,154,290
(693,650)

Gross profit

436,696

460,640

Gross profit (%)

36.06%

39.91%

Administrative expenses
Employment costs
Establishment costs
General administrative expenses
Finance charges
Depreciation costs

151,761
100,286
133,350
6,975
54,707

107,287
85,776
79,308
5,955
15,512
(447,079)

(293,838)

Other operating income
Other interest receivable and similar
income (analysed below)
Interest payable and similar charges
(analysed below)

3,167

—

258

294

(909)

—

(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation

(7,867)

167,096

86

17280 West Berkshire Brewery Info Memo:Layout 1

20/12/2013

17:09

Page 87

Detailed Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2013
2013
£

Turnover
Sales, UK

2012
£

1,210,987 1,154,290
1,210,987 1,154,290

Cost of sales
Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stock
Wages and salaries
Staff NIC (Employers)
Excise duty
Electricity and water

Employment costs
Wages and salaries
Staff NIC (Employers)
Directors’ remuneration
Directors‘ NIC (Employers)
Directors’ pensions
Staff training
Recruitment expenses

87

93,231
304,872
(96,642)
176,845
16,267
251,691
28,027

65,550
302,930
(93,231)
163,988
14,695
211,233
28,485

774,291

693,650

51,268
5,371
82,250
8,250
1,429
2,236
957

40,212
4,168
50,896
4,909
3,749
3,353
—

151,761

107,287
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Detailed Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2013

Establishment costs
Rent and service charges
Rising Sun rent
Rates and water
Insurance
Repairs and renewals

General administrative expenses
Telephone
General office
Bookkeeping
Computer expenses
Rising Sun refurbishment materials & labour
Trade subscriptions
Sundry expenses
Accountancy fees
Auditor’s remuneration – The audit of the company’s annual accounts
Legal and professional fees
Motor and travel
Advertising
Marketing consultancy fees
Staff entertaining (allowable for tax)
Customer entertaining (disallowable for tax)
Bad debts written off

88

2013
£

2012
£

34,694
21,590
14,583
9,699
19,720

30,925
21,189
5,782
9,719
18,161

100,286

85,776

3,372
1,984
8,767
3,286
24,595
1,807
8,879
347
2,500
10,866
26,734
11,674
27,280
844
29
386

2,975
2,583
9,565
4,895
—
1,664
3,151
5,417
—
9,189
20,990
13,331
—
1,208
431
3,909

133,350

79,308
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Detailed Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2013

Finance charges
Bank charges and interest
Credit card charges

Depreciation costs
Depreciation of long leasehold property
Depreciation of plant and machinery
Depreciation of fixtures and fittings
Depreciation of motor vehicles
Depreciation of computer equipment (owned)
Depreciation of improvements to property (owned)
Depreciation of new brewery plant and equipment
(Profit)/loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets

Other operating income
Government grants receivable

Other interest receivable and similar income
Bank interest receivable

Interest payable and similar charges
Hire purchase interest

89

2013
£

2012
£

6,631
344

5,924
31

6,975

5,955

—
15,540
3,240
11,317
2,860
15,058
6,692
—

51,371
22,313
2,249
3,944
2,904
—
—
(67,269)

54,707

15,512

3,167

—

3,167

—

258

294

258

294

909

—

909

—
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Report of the Directors
for the Year Ended 31 March 2012
The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company for the year ended
31 March 2012.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the company in the year under review was that of brewery.
DIRECTORS
The directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 April 2011 to the
date of this report.
D Maggs
H Maggs
Dr A E Baum
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
The directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to:
-

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

-

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

-

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of
the Companies Act 2006) of which the company’s auditors are unaware, and each director has taken
all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself or herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that
information.
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AUDITORS
The auditors, Villars Hayward LLP, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.
This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies
Act 2006 relating to small companies.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

D Maggs
Director
Date: 3 February 2013
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
The West Berkshire Brewery Company Ltd
We have audited the financial statements of The West Berkshire Brewery Company Ltd for the year
ended 31 March 2012 on pages five to ten. The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation is applicable law and the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities
(effective April 2008) (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice applicable to
Smaller Entities).
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in a Report of the Auditors and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page two, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards
for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the
financial and non-financial information in the Report of the Directors to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
Basis for qualified opinion on financial statements
With respect to stock having a carrying amount of £93,231 the audit evidence available to us was
limited because we did not observe the counting of the physical stock as at 31 March 2012, since
that date was prior to our appointment as auditor of the company. Due to this, we were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the stock quantities by using other audit
procedures.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
-

give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

-

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice applicable to Smaller Entities; and

-

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
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Emphasis of matter – Non Statutory Financial Statements
In addition to our modified opinion, we draw attention to the fact that these Non-Statutory Financial
Statements have not been prepared under section 394 of the Companies Act 2006 and are not the
Company’s statutory financial statements.
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:
-

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

-

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

-

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

-

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

-

the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small
companies regime and take advantage of the small companies’ exemption in preparing the
Report of the Directors.

NM Smith ACA, CTA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Villars Hayward LLP
Chartered Accountants
Chartered Tax Advisers and Registered Auditors
Boston House
Henley-on-Thames
RG9 1DY
Date: 5 February 2013
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Profit and Loss Account
for the Year Ended 31 March 2012
31.3.12
£

31.3.11
£

1,154,290
693,650

892,320
522,268

GROSS PROFIT
Administrative expenses

460,640
293,838

370,052
244,481

Other operating income

166,802
—

125,571
13,578

166,802
294

139,149
146

167,096
—

139,295
3,003

167,096
56,794

136,292
30,032

110,302

106,260

Notes

TURNOVER
Cost of sales

OPERATING PROFIT
Interest receivable and similar income

3

Interest payable and similar charges
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION
Tax on profit on ordinary activities
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

95
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Balance Sheet
31 March 2012
Notes

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year

31.3.12
£

6

7

8

£

31.3.11
£

375,375

£

298,261

93,231
105,234
152,372

65,550
90,637
126,472

350,837

282,659

159,675

154,537

NET CURRENT ASSETS

191,162

128,122

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

566,537
50,236

426,383
2,517

516,301

423,866

1,900
22,683
491,718

1,900
22,683
399,283

516,301

423,866

10

NET ASSETS
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital
Share premium
Profit and loss account

11
12
12

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of
the Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies and with the Financial Reporting Standard for
Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 3 February 2013 and were
signed on its behalf by:

D Maggs
Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 March 2012
1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008).
Turnover
Turnover represents net invoiced sales of goods, excluding value added tax.
Tangible fixed assets
Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its
estimated useful life.
Long leasehold
Improvements to property
Plant and machinery
Fixtures and fittings
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment

–
–
–
–
–
–

Over term of lease
Over term of lease
20% on cost and 15% on cost
20% on cost
25% on cost
25% on cost

Improvements to property include the employment cost of the brewery staff who have been
directly involved in construction of the new brewery, which opened on 1 November 2011,
together with other relevant direct costs.
Stocks
Stock represents the value of the ingredients and packaging that remained unused at the
balance sheet date together with the stock of finished, bottled or cask beer unsold at the year
end.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not
reversed at the balance sheet date.
Hire purchase and leasing commitments
Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts or finance leases are capitalised in the balance
sheet. Those held under hire purchase contracts are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. Those held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives or the
lease term, whichever is the shorter.
The interest element of these obligations is charged to the profit and loss account over the
relevant period. The capital element of the future payments is treated as a liability.
Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits
The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions payable to the
company’s pension scheme are charged to the profit and loss account in the period to which
they relate.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ remuneration and other benefits etc

31.3.12
£

31.3.11
£

50,896

44,500

The number of directors to whom retirement benefits were accruing was as follows:
Money purchase schemes

1

1

Directors’ remuneration includes an amount of £27,500 in respect of a director which has been
capitalised as time spent on the new brewery under construction.
3.

OPERATING PROFIT
The operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation – owned assets
Profit on disposal of fixed assets
Pension costs
4.

31.3.12
£

31.3.11
£

82,780
(67,269)
3,749

—
(400)
3,248

TAXATION
Analysis of the tax charge
The tax charge on the profit on ordinary activities for the year was as follows:

5.

31.3.12
£

31.3.11
£

Current tax:
UK corporation tax
Deferred tax

9,075
47,719

33,381
(3,349)

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

56,794

30,032

31.3.12
£

31.3.11
£

17,867

—

DIVIDENDS

Ordinary shares of 10p each
Interim
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TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Long
leasehold
£

Improvements
to property
£

Plant and
machinery
£

COST
At 1 April 2011
Additions
Disposals
Grants
Reclassification/transfer

52,088
—
—
—
—

170,060
99,849
—
(47,500)
(45,645)

259,019
107,168
(72,028)
(2,500)
45,645

At 31 March 2012

52,088

176,764

337,304

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2011
Charge for year
Eliminated on disposal

12,501
39,587
—

—
11,784
—

186,568
22,645
(69,327)

At 31 March 2012

52,088

11,784

139,886

—

164,980

197,418

39,587

170,060

72,451

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2012
At 31 March 2011

Fixtures
and
fittings
£

Motor
vehicles
£

Computer
equipment
£

Totals
£

COST
At 1 April 2011
Additions
Disposals
Grants

6,281
3,299
—
—

30,025
—
—
—

9,429
2,309
(180)
—

526,902
212,625
(72,208)
(50,000)

At 31 March 2012

9,580

30,025

11,558

617,319

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2011
Charge for year
Eliminated on disposal

3,656
1,916
—

21,594
3,944
—

4,322
2,904
(150)

228,641
82,780
(69,477)

At 31 March 2012

5,572

25,538

7,076

241,944

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2012

4,008

4,487

4,482

375,375

At 31 March 2011

2,625

8,431

5,107

298,261
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DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade debtors
Other debtors

8.

31.3.11
£

71,335
33,899

72,293
18,344

105,234

90,637

31.3.12
£

31.3.11
£

62,837
45,483
51,355

53,258
50,567
50,712

159,675

154,537

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade creditors
Taxation and social security
Other creditors

9.

31.3.12
£

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The following operating lease payments are committed to be paid within one year:

Expiring:
Within one year
Between one and five years
In more than five years

10.

31.3.12
£

31.3.11
£

1,406
1,440
52,458

350
31,639
23,208

55,304

55,197

31.3.12
£

31.3.11
£

50,236

2,517

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

Deferred tax

Deferred
tax
£

Balance at 1 April 2011
Accelerated capital allowances

2,517
47,719

Balance at 31 March 2012

50,236
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CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
Allotted, issued and fully paid:

12.

13.

Nominal
value:

31.3.12
£

31.3.11
£

10p

1,900

1,900

Profit
and loss
account
£

Share
premium
£

Totals
£

At 1 April 2011
Profit for the year
Dividends

399,283
110,302
(17,867)

22,683
—
—

421,966
110,302
(17,867

At 31 March 2012

491,718

22,683

514,401

Number:

Class:

19,000

Ordinary

RESERVES

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
During the year, total dividends of £17,867 were paid to the directors.

14.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
The company is under the control of D Maggs and H Maggs, both directors, due to their control
of 75% of the issued share capital of the company.
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Trading and Profit and Loss Account
for the Year Ended 31 March 2012
31.3.12
£

£

31.3.11
£

Sales
Cost of sales
Opening stock
Purchases
Wages
Social security
Excise duty
Electricity and water

1,154,290
65,550
302,930
163,988
14,695
211,233
28,485

58,415
199,220
119,323
14,213
171,788
24,859

Closing stock

786,881
(93,231)

587,818
(65,550)

GROSS PROFIT
Other income
Rents received
Deposit account interest

21,189
30,925
5,782
9,719
50,896
4,909
3,749
40,212
4,168
2,975
13,331
20,990
2,583
18,161
4,895
1,664
3,151
5,417
9,565
3,353
9,189

102

892,320

693,650

522,268

460,640

370,052

—
294

Expenditure
Rising Sun rent
Rent and service charges
Rates and water
Insurance
Directors’ salaries
Directors’ social security
Directors’ pension contributions
Office wages
Social security
Telephone
Advertising
Motor and travel
General office
Repairs and renewals
Computer expenses
Subscriptions
Sundry expenses
Accountancy
Bookkeeping
Training
Professional fees

£

13,578
146
294

13,724

460,934

383,776
17,250
17,408
1,490
5,984
44,500
4,172
3,248
25,408
2,622
1,841
7,527
17,338
1,652
13,731
2,880
2,341
274
5,095
9,832
4,080
13,947
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31.3.12
£

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Long leasehold
Plant and machinery
Fixtures and fittings
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment
Profit/loss on sale of tangible fixed assets
Entertainment
Bad debts

£

51,371
22,313
2,249
3,944
2,904
(67,269)
1,639
3,909

Carried forward
Brought forward
Finance costs
Bank charges and interest
Credit card charges
Hire purchase

103
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£

4,167
18,792
1,256
7,508
2,357
(400)
1,471
2,651
287,883

240,422

173,051
173,051

143,354
143,354

5,924
31
—

NET PROFIT

31.3.11
£

4,059
—
3,003
5,955

7,062

167,096

136,292
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